

No 2009 – 01 January

From various degrees of trade to various degrees of financial integration: What do interest rates have to say?

Adeline Bachellerie, Jérôme Héricourt and Valérie Mignon

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Non-technical summary.	3
Abstract	4
Résumé non technique	5
Résumé court	6
1. Introduction	7
2. Trade and financial integration.	9
2.1. A selection of RTAs: Motivations around the Balassa's classification	9
2.2. Expectations hypothesis of the term structure (EHTS)	10
2.3. Real interest rate parity (RIP)	12
3. Data and econometric methods	13
4. The effects of regional trade agreements on financial integration	15
4.1. Test of the EHTS	15
4.2. Tests of the RIP	19
5. Conclusion	29
References	30
Appendix	33
List of working papers released by CEPII	14

FROM VARIOUS DEGREES OF TRADE TO VARIOUS DEGREES OF FINANCIAL INTEGRATION: WHAT DO INTEREST RATES HAVE TO SAY?

NON-TECHNICAL SUMMARY

The second half of the 20th century has been characterized by the rise of regional trade agreements (RTAs) along with the worldwide trend of removing trade barriers within the General Agreement on Trade and Tariffs (GATT) negotiations. The trade creating (within the considered trade unions) and trade diverting (with the rest of the world) effects associated with regional trade agreements, have been extensively studied in the literature, relying on the well-known gravity equation.

Alongside with this literature, another strand of research emphasizes that trade integration goes along with financial integration. As stressed in Eichengreen and Park (2005), it seems indeed that "finance follows trade".

To our best knowledge however, it has never been tried to investigate the impact of this parallel integration in trade and financial flows on asset returns. This seems especially important in the sense that RTAs are characterized by various degrees of trade integration and consequently, of financial integration. These differences should be reflected in the returns of financial assets and primarily in interest rates.

In this paper, we propose a systematic study of the degree of financial integration following the degree of trade integration according to Balassa's (1961) classification, from preferential trading area to complete economic integration. To this end, we exploit all the information contained in interest rates and rely on the expectations hypothesis of the term structure of interest rates (EHTS) and real interest rate parity (RIP). These two conditions are empirically investigated on various regional trade agreements, using cointegration techniques by paying a special attention to potential breaks.

Our results show that customs unions, corresponding to step 3 of the Balassa's classification, seem to be a decisive threshold after which financial integration robustly takes place. Indeed, while EHTS and RIP are not clearly evidenced for preferential trading and free trade areas (such as ASEAN+3, LAIA, and EFTA), both conditions are verified for customs unions such as ANDEAN, CACM, MERCOSUR and the European Union. On the whole, our results are consistent with Eichengreen and Park's (2005) intuition that "finance follows trade" only after a certain degree of trade integration.

ABSTRACT

This paper proposes a systematic study of the degree of financial integration following the degree of trade integration according to Balassa's (1961) classification, from preferential trading area to complete economic integration. To this end, we exploit all the information contained in interest rates and rely on the expectations hypothesis of the term structure of interest rates and real interest rate parity. These two conditions are empirically investigated on various regional trade agreements, using cointegration techniques by paying a special attention to potential breaks. Our results show that customs unions, corresponding to step 3 of the Balassa's classification, seem to be a decisive threshold after which financial integration robustly takes place.

JEL Classification: C22, E43, F15.

Keywords:

financial integration, trade integration, regional trade agreement, term structure of interest rates, real interest rate parity.

DE L'INTÉGRATION COMMERCIALE À L'INTÉGRATION FINANCIÈRE : QUE NOUS ENSEIGNENT LES TAUX D'INTÉRÊT ?

RÉSUME NON TECHNIQUE

La deuxième moitié du XXe siècle a été caractérisée par un renforcement des accords commerciaux régionaux (ACR) parallèlement à la réduction des barrières tarifaires émanant des accords du GATT. Les effets sur le commerce intra-zone et avec le reste du monde de ces accords commerciaux régionaux ont fait l'objet d'une littérature abondante, au travers notamment de l'estimation d'équations de gravité.

En parallèle à ces analyses, un deuxième pan de la littérature s'est consacré à l'étude des liens entre intégration commerciale et intégration financière. Comme le soulignent Eichengreen et Park (2005), il ressort généralement de ces travaux que "la finance suit le commerce".

Si tel est bien le cas, les différents ACR recouvrant des degrés divers d'intégration commerciale, on devrait observer une intégration financière différenciée selon le type d'ACR. En particulier, ces différences devraient se refléter dans les rendements des titres financiers et, en premier lieu, dans les taux d'intérêt.

A notre connaissance, il n'existe pas de travaux dans ce domaine. Nous proposons dans cet article une étude approfondie de l'intégration financière suivant la classification du degré d'intégration commerciale établie par Balassa (1961), allant des zones d'échanges préférentielles jusqu'à l'intégration économique complète. A cette fin, nous exploitons toute l'information contenue dans les taux d'intérêt en nous référant aux théories de la structure par terme des taux d'intérêt et de la parité des taux d'intérêt réels. Ces deux conditions sont appréhendées empiriquement sur divers accords commerciaux régionaux, en recourant aux techniques de cointégration et en accordant une attention particulière aux ruptures potentielles.

Nos résultats montrent que les unions douanières, correspondant à la troisième étape de la classification de Balassa, constituent un seuil décisif d'intégration commerciale à partir duquel l'intégration financière peut prendre place. En effet, alors que la structure par terme et la parité des taux d'intérêt réels ne semblent pas validées pour les zones d'échanges préférentielles et les zones de libre échange (ASEAN+3, LAIA, EFTA), ces deux théories sont vérifiées pour les unions douanières, comme l'AN-DEAN, le CACM, le MERCOSUR et l'Union européenne. Au total, nos résultats confirment l'intuition d'Eichengreen et Park (2005) selon laquelle "la finance suit le commerce", mais uniquement après un certain degré d'intégration commerciale.

Résumé court

Nous proposons dans cet article une étude approfondie de l'intégration financière suivant la classification du degré d'intégration commerciale établie par Balassa (1961), allant des zones d'échanges préférentielles jusqu'à l'intégration économique complète. A cette fin, nous exploitons toute l'information contenue dans les taux d'intérêt en nous référant aux théories de la structure par terme des taux d'intérêt et de la parité des taux d'intérêt réels. Ces deux conditions sont appréhendées empiriquement sur divers accords commerciaux régionaux, en recourant aux techniques de cointégration et en accordant une attention particulière aux ruptures potentielles. Nos résultats montrent que les unions douanières, correspondant à la troisième étape de la classification de Balassa, constituent un seuil décisif d'intégration commerciale à partir duquel l'intégration financière peut prendre place.

Classification JEL: C22, E43, F15.

Mots clés : intégration financière, intégration commerciale, accords commerciaux régionaux, structure par terme des taux d'intérêt, parité des taux d'intérêt.

FROM VARIOUS DEGREES OF TRADE TO VARIOUS DEGREES OF FINANCIAL INTEGRATION: WHAT DO INTEREST RATES HAVE TO SAY?¹

Adeline Bachellerie*, Jérôme Héricourt[†], and Valérie Mignon[‡]

1. INTRODUCTION

The second half of the 20th century has been characterized by the rise of regional trade agreements (RTAs) along with the worldwide trend of removing trade barriers within the General Agreement on Trade and Tariffs (GATT) negotiations. The trade creating (within the considered trade unions) and trade diverting (with the rest of the world) effects associated with regional trade agreements, have been extensively studied in the literature, relying on the wellknown gravity equation (see, among others, Frankel, 1997; Soloaga and Winters, 2001; Carrère, 2006). All these papers largely support the existence of enhancing effects of RTAs on intraunion trade, although Carrère (2006)'s results report the existence of strong diverting effects with the rest of the world.

Alongside with this literature, another strand of research emphasizes that trade integration goes along with financial integration. As stressed by Eichengreen and Park (2005), it seems indeed that "finance follows trade" (p. 99). More specifically, they conclude that Asia seems less financially integrated than Europe because it has done less to promote the growth of intra-regional trade. Focusing on the case of European Monetary Union, Frankel and Rose (1997, 1998) show that countries with closer trade links tend to have more tightly correlated business cycles. In the case of EMU members, the implied economic integration went along with a strong process of financial integration. More recently, a new line of papers investigates the complementarity between bilateral trade in goods and bilateral financial claims. Both theoretical arguments (see Obstfeld and Rogoff, 2000; Serrat, 2001; Rose and Spiegel, 2002 and Rose, 2005) and empirical evidence (see Aviat and Coeurdacier, 2007) support that trade in goods and trade in assets are closely related.

¹We thank Agnès Bénassy-Quéré for her careful reading and very helpful comments.

^{*}Centre d'Economie Sorbonne, University of Paris 1, France. (adeline.bachellerie@malix.univ-paris1.fr)

[†]EQUIPPE-University of Lille and Centre d'Economie Sorbonne, University of Paris 1, France. (jerome.hericourt@univ-lille1.fr)

[†]*Corresponding author.* EconomiX-CNRS, University of Paris Ouest and CEPII, Paris, France. Address: University of Paris Ouest, 200 avenue de la République, 92001 Nanterre Cedex, France. Phone: +33 (0)1 40 97 58 60. Fax: +33 (0)1 40 97 77 84. (valerie.mignon@u-paris10.fr)

To our best knowledge however, it has never been tried to investigate the impact of this parallel integration in trade and financial flows on asset returns. This seems especially important since RTAs are characterized by various degrees of trade integration and, consequently, of financial integration. Pomfret (2006) highlights that the trend toward regionalism started in the late 1950s in Western Europe is characterized by an increasing degree of trade integration. Therefore, all RTAs do not imply the same degree of trade integration (see also Balassa, 1961), and, consequently, of financial integration. This should be reflected in the returns on financial assets and primarily in interest rates.

In this paper, we propose a systematic study of the degree of financial integration following the degree of trade integration according to Balassa's (1961) classification, from preferential trading area to economic and monetary integration. To this end, we exploit all the information contained in interest rates, using proper time series econometrics. On the theoretical ground, we rely on the expectations hypothesis of the term structure of interest rates (EHTS) and real interest rate parity (RIP). According to the EHTS, the yield spread between long- and shortterm interest rates is an optimal predictor of future changes in short rates over the long run. Under the RIP hypothesis, domestic and foreign real interest rates are expected to converge. As recently emphasized by Bekaert et al. (2007), EHTS and RIP should by construction jointly hold in the long run.² More specifically, by relying on uncovered interest rate parity (UIP), they showed that if EHTS holds and if UIP is valid in the short run, then it should hold in the long run. UIP represents a building block of most important exchange rate determination theories such as Dornbusch's (1976) overshooting model or Krugman's (1991) target zone. Assuming both Purchasing Power Parity (PPP) and UIP, as in early versions of the monetary model of exchange rate determination introduced by Frenkel (1976) and Mussa (1976), permits to get RIP in the long run.³ The real interest rate differential model introduced by Frankel (1979) allows for sticky prices in the short run and implies the validity of RIP in the long run when the real exchange rate reaches its equilibrium value. To that extent, the RIP also emerges as a cornerstone in international finance literature (see Fountas and Wu, 1999).

While the purpose of this paper is not to study the joint completion of the two conditions, EHTS and RIP appear definitively to be the two sides of the same coin. While RIP is a more direct tool to investigate the financial integration property, the EHTS can be viewed as a complementary tool. Indeed, if some countries belonging to a given RTA display consistent term structures while other do not, this means that their financial markets behave differently, casting some doubts about the financial integration of the considered zone. In this sense, EHTS can be viewed as a prerequisite for financial integration. Besides, EHTS and RIP seem to remain two key features of the international finance literature, with a significant number of research in

²Relying on cointegration techniques, Brüggeman and Lütkepohl (2005) find that both conditions hold for the US and the euro area.

³Note that to account for long-term deviations from the EHTS, a time-varying risk premium is introduced.

recent years. In addition to Brüggeman and Lütkepohl (2005) or Bekaert *et al.* (2007), already mentioned, Lardic and Mignon (2004) find evidence of fractional cointegration between short and long-term interest rates for G7 countries, except Germany. Weber (2006) studies British interest rate convergence between the US and Europe using a recursive cointegration analysis. More recently, Bouvatier (2007) relies on the UIP to study whether interest rate differentials in Asian countries over the 1997-1998 period are driven by the risk premium. Camarero *et al.* (2008) examine the expectations hypothesis of the term structure in the euro area. Along with this renewal of interest, a growing attention has been paid to the econometric techniques, with a special focus on potential breaks in the estimated relationships.

We therefore propose to investigate empirically both conditions, EHTS and RIP, on a selection of RTAs, in order to check for differences according to the various degrees of trade integration. To our best knowledge, such a systematic investigation is the first of its type. We start by focusing on term structure of interest rates. For each country we first check the existence of consistent term structures of interest rates using cointegration tests, accounting for the small sample bias and potential breakdowns in the series. Secondly, we rely on the interest rate parity theory to test for real interest rate convergence⁴ within each RTA, allowing for potential structural breaks.

The paper is structured as follows. Section 2 motivates the selection of RTAs and the underlying theoretical frameworks. Section 3 presents the data and specifies the econometric methodology. Section 4 reports the results relating to tests of the interest rate term structure for each RTA, as well as the conclusions from tests of the RIP theory. Section 5 provides concluding remarks.

2. TRADE AND FINANCIAL INTEGRATION

2.1. A selection of RTAs: Motivations around the Balassa's classification

Following Carrère (2006), the RTAs considered in this paper are: European Union (EU), AN-DEAN (Andean community of nations), NAFTA (North American Free Trade Agreement), CACM (Central American Common Market), MERCOSUR (Mercado Comun del Sur), ASEAN (Association of South East Asian Nations)⁵ and LAIA (Latin American Integration Association). ⁶ Following Frankel (1997), we also consider EFTA (European Free Trade Agreement) and CER (Closer Economic Relations). These country groupings represent the major existing RTAs; they also cover various degrees ("steps") of the Balassa (1961)'s classification of economic integration, from preferential trading area (step 1) to common market (step 4). This allows for a direct test of our intuition that degrees of financial integration may be closely related to different levels of trade integration. Consistently, we consider an additional group of

⁴In our context, "real interest rate parity" and "real interest rate convergence" are used equivalently, see Fountas and Wu (1999).

⁵Actually, we will consider the ASEAN+3, or "APT". See Table A.2 in Appendix for more details.

⁶See Table A.1 in Appendix for definitions and members of these groups of countries.

countries which can be viewed as a fifth step of the spectrum covered by the previously mentioned RTAs: the euro area. This area goes well beyond conventional RTAs, providing us with a useful benchmark to contrast with the RTAs pertaining to step 1. Table 1 depicts the selected RTAs according to Balassa's (1961) classification, along with a succinct presentation of the features of each category.⁷

2.2. Expectations hypothesis of the term structure (EHTS)

According to the expectations theory of the term structure of interest rates, the yields on financial assets of different maturities are related primarily by market expectations of future yields. The theory implies that the yield spread between long and short rates is an optimal predictor of future changes in short rates over the long run (see Cuthbertson, 1996 a&b, and Bredin and Cuthbertson, 2000).⁸

More specifically, according to the expectations theory, the k-period interest rate, $r_t(k)$, is the weighted average of the expected future m-period interest rate, $r_t(m)$, with k > m, plus a term premium:

$$\left[1 + r_t(k)\right]^k = \left[\prod_{i=0}^{k-1} \left(1 + E_t r_{t+i}(m)\right)\right]^{1/k} \left(1 + E_t \theta_t(k)\right) \tag{1}$$

where E_t is the expectations operator conditional on information available at time t and $\theta_t(k)$ denotes the term premium which may reflect risk and liquidity premia. Note that under the pure rational expectations hypothesis, the term premium is null $(E_t\theta_t(k) = 0)$, while in the modern or ordinary version, it is constant $(E_t\theta_t(k) = \theta(k))$. The constant-term premium is required by investors, because they bear the risk of holding longer-dated instruments. The constant assumption, however, is merely a technical simplification of the theory.

If $r_t(m)$ is I(1), then $r_t(k)$ is also I(1) and interest rate spreads are I(0). Consequently, if the expectations hypothesis holds, the term spread is stationary: short and long-term rates are cointegrated. The existence of a cointegration relationship between interest rates is thus a necessary condition for the expectations hypothesis to hold. The use of cointegration tests in order to assess the empirical adequacy of the expectations hypothesis seems therefore a natural way to proceed (see e.g. Lardic and Mignon, 2004).

⁷In fact, Balassa's classification entails a sixth step, when economic integration is complete: the integrated units have no or negligible control on economic policy, including full monetary union and complete or near-complete fiscal policy harmonization (e.g., the USA). For a detailed presentation and justification, see Balassa (1961).

⁸A vast literature has been published on this subject (for a survey, see Shiller, 1990, and Pagan, Hall and Martin, 1996).

ian Trading Area (PTA) A de Area (FTA) A de Area (FTA) A Union (CU) A Market (CM) A do do d	eatures trading bloc which gives preferential access to certain products from ertain countries. Tariffs are reduced, but do not fully disappear. . group of countries agreeing to eliminate tariffs, quotas and prefer- nces on most (if not all) goods between them. . free trade area with a common external tariff. . customs union with common policies on product regulation, and free- om of movement of the factors of production (capital and labor) and of nterprise.	RTA APT (=ASEAN+3), LAIA CER, EFTA, NAFTA, ANDEAN* ANDEAN*, CACM, MERCOSUR EU Euro Area
	on F ial Trading Area (PTA) A e Area (FTA) A Union (CU) A Market (CM) A d d d d	onFeaturesial Trading Area (PTA)A trading bloc which gives preferential access to certain products from certain countries. Tariffs are reduced, but do not fully disappear.ie Area (FTA)A trading bloc which gives preferential access to certain products from certain countries. Tariffs are reduced, but do not fully disappear.ie Area (FTA)A group of countries agreeing to eliminate tariffs, quotas and prefer- ences on most (if not all) goods between them.Union (CU)A free trade area with a common external tariff. A customs union with common policies on product regulation, and free- dom of movement of the factors of production (capital and labor) and of enterprise.: and Monetary Union (EMU)A single market with a common currency.

Table 1 – RTAs according to Balassa's classification

Sources: WTO (http://www.wto.org/english/tratop_e/region_e/region_e.htm) and Vicard (2008). * Peru entered the Andean Free Trade Area only in 1997, and did not join the Andean Customs Union until 2004.).

2.3. Real interest rate parity (RIP)

According to Christiansen and Pigott (1997) among others, there are at least three main reasons to believe that interest rates may evolve together across countries. First, real interest rates are not only influenced by domestic conditions, but also by world factors that determine the aggregate demand and supply for world savings (Barro and Sala-i-Martin, 1990). Second, due to the globalization process, individual risk premia are determined by common factors rather than by country specific risks. Three, there are important spillovers across bond markets.

But there is another motivation for real interest rates to converge, the existence of specific economic and trade relationships coming from the existence of RTAs. If "finance follows trade" as emphasized by Eichengreen and Park (2005), an increasing interest-rate convergence should be observed proportionally to the degree of trade and economic integration. Indeed, some RTAs, like the EU, imply the relaxation of capital controls and freedom of capital movements, creating additional pressure for real interest rates to converge. The study of RIP in each RTA previously defined will allow us to provide empirical support to this intuition. Besides, the distinction between short and long-term real interest rates should enlighten interesting differences, since long-term interest rates may remain mainly determined by domestic economic conditions (expectations about future inflation for instance). On the whole, studying the RIP should therefore provide complementary and consistent evidence with the study of the expectations hypothesis of the term structure.

The *ex post* version of the Fisher hypothesis according to which the nominal interest rate is equal to the real interest rate plus expected inflation can be written as:

$$r_t - r_t^* = (i_t - i_t^* - \Delta s_t) - (\pi_t - \pi_t^* - \Delta s_t)$$
(2)

where r is the real interest rate, i the nominal interest rate, s the log of the nominal exchange rate, π the inflation rate and an asterisk denotes foreign variables. The first bracket in the righthand side of Equation (2) represents the deviation from the uncovered interest parity (UIP) and the second one represents the deviation from purchasing power parity (PPP). Under the RIP hypothesis, both UIP and PPP hold. In an environment of increasing integration, deviations from UIP — due to country risk premium and exchange risk premium — and PPP — due to divergence in inflation rates — are likely to diminish and, consequently, real interest rate convergence is expected.

From an empirical viewpoint, RIP can be tested using the following equation:

$$r_t = \alpha + \beta r_t^* + \varepsilon_t \tag{3}$$

where ε_t is an error term. In case the domestic and foreign interest rates have single unit roots (i.e. are I(1)), RIP holds if the error term is stationary, meaning that domestic and foreign rates are cointegrated.

3. DATA AND ECONOMETRIC METHODS

Empirical tests and estimations are performed on 58 countries divided into 10 RTAs. We use monthly data for short-term and long-term interest rates. Table A.2 in the Appendix describes, for each country, the period under study and the data sources. Short-term interest rates are generally 3-month interest rates or money market rates; and long-term interest rates are in the main cases 10-year government bond yield, depending upon data availability for each country.

As previously noticed, the use of cointegration tests in order to assess the empirical adequacy of the expectations hypothesis appears as the standard way to proceed. Provided that nominal interest rate series are I(1), the Johansen (1988) and Johansen and Juselius (1990) procedures may be implemented to test for the number of cointegrating vectors using a trace test. However, these cointegration tests could lead to an over-rejection of the no cointegration hypothesis, due to the finite sample bias and the possible cointegration rank inconstancy. Consequently, forward recursive trace tests are implemented to investigate the cointegrating rank stability. Moreover, the trace test statistic is corrected for the finite sample bias as suggested by Reimers (1991) and Reinsel and Ahn (1992).⁹ Used in recent research on related topics (see e.g. Bouvatier, 2007), these modifications will hopefully give more robust results on the existence of term structure for each country of our sample. Besides, they will help us to see how the cointegration relationship (if any) evolves over time, and according to which factors.

Turning to real interest rate parity, the test is performed on both short and long-term interest rates. In accordance with the definition previously mentioned, we use the *ex post* version of the Fisher relationship as follows:

$$1 + r_t = (1 + i_t) / (1 + \frac{P_{t+12} - P_t}{P_t})$$
(4)

where r_t is the real interest rate at time t from holding the investment for twelve months, i_t is the nominal interest rate and P_t is the price index. $(P_{t+12} - P_t)/P_t$ is therefore the inflation rate from time t to time t + 12.

The test of RIP relies on the existence of a bivariate cointegrating relationship between domestic and foreign interest rates. If real interest rates are actually I(1), conventional cointegration tests are confronted to a major drawback when the time period under study includes changes in the monetary and/or exchange rate regimes of the considered countries. The problem is not so far from the one previously described for the term structure hypothesis: standard cointegration methods may assimilate to a lack of cointegration what is only a deterministic break in the mean or trend of a linear combination of these variables (i.e. a shift in the cointegration vector over the sample period). Fountas and Wu (1999) present many reasons supporting the existence

⁹This correction does not consist in estimating new critical values but in multiplying the trace test statistic by the scale factor $\frac{T-pk}{T}$, where T is the number of observations, p the number of endogenous variables, and k the number of lags.

of this kind of shifts in real interest rate convergence in the case of the European Monetary System (EMS): dismantlement of capital controls, different and variable degrees of credibility for monetary and exchange rate policies, changes in the stance of fiscal or monetary policy... The same kind of phenomena should hold strongly for many countries of our sample, especially the emerging ones (Asian and Latin-American), which endured many monetary and exchange rate regime switches during the eighties and the nineties. Besides, many of them led restrictive fiscal policies in the context of IMF stabilization plans.

This is why we use, extending Fountas and Wu (1999)'s approach, the Gregory and Hansen (1996) procedure for testing real interest rate convergence within each considered RTA. Indeed, the Gregory and Hansen (1996) methodology is a residual-based cointegration test where the timing of the regime shift is not known *ex ante* but is determined endogenously by appealing to the data. Three models of an endogenous one-time regime shift reflecting three different alternative hypotheses are considered:

$$r_t = a_1 + a_2 D_t + br_t^* + u_t, t = 1, \dots, T$$
(5)

$$r_t = a_1 + a_2 D_t + br_t^* + ct + u_t, t = 1, ..., T$$
(6)

$$r_t = a_1 + a_2 D_t + b_1 r_t^* + b_2 r_t^* D_t + u_t, t = 1, ..., T$$
(7)

where

$$\begin{cases} D_t = 0 \text{ if } t \le [T\tau] \\ D_t = 1 \text{ if } t > [T\tau] \end{cases}$$

and $\tau \epsilon[0, 1]$ is an unknown parameter denoting the relative timing of the change point and [x] denotes integer part of x. The use of the dummy variable D_t allows one to test for a structural change or regime shift. Equations (5), (6) and (7) reflect different possibilities for the characteristics of the level shift in the cointegrating relationship, which can either concern only the intercept (Equation (5)) or both the intercept and the slope (Equation (7)). Equation (6) controls for the presence of a linear time trend. The null hypothesis in all three models is that u_t is non-stationary (I(1)), i.e. r_t and r_t^* are not cointegrated. Conversely, cointegration with structural change implies that u_t is stationary (I(0)). Gregory and Hansen (1996) suggest the use of three non-stationarity tests of u_t , which are modifications of the test statistics Z_{α} and Z_t (Phillips, 1987) and the Augmented Dickey-Fuller (ADF) statistic, defined as:

 $\begin{cases} Z_{\alpha}^{*} = \inf_{\tau \in T} Z_{\alpha}(\tau) \\ Z_{t}^{*} = \inf_{\tau \in T} Z_{t(\tau)} \\ ADF^{*} = \inf_{\tau \in T} ADF(\tau) \end{cases}$

where Z_{α} , Z_t and $ADF(\tau)$ correspond to the change point τ .¹⁰

4. THE EFFECTS OF REGIONAL TRADE AGREEMENTS ON FINANCIAL INTEGRATION

4.1. Test of the EHTS

As previously mentioned, testing the EHTS allows us to have a first idea concerning financial integration across countries. Indeed, if countries belonging to a given RTA are not characterized by a similar term structure of interest rates, this casts doubts about the financial integration of the zone. So, EHTS may be viewed as a prerequisite for financial integration.

The first natural step is to check for time series persistence using unit root tests. To this end, standard ADF, Phillips-Perron and KPSS tests are used and show that most nominal interest rate series are integrated of order one.¹¹ We thus proceed to the application of cointegration tests, by implementing the Johansen trace recursive test. The test is applied by assuming the presence of a linear trend in the data, but not in the cointegrating relationship¹² and by selecting the number of lags according to standard information criteria, with a preference given to Akaike criterion and likelihood ratios tests.¹³ We test the two standard null hypotheses for a bivariate relationship, that is the null of no cointegration, then the null that at most one cointegrating relationship exists.

Figures A.1 to A.10 in Appendix plot the recursive computations for both trace statistics and their finite sample corrected versions. Figures are ordered according to the classification presented in Table 1, starting with preferential trading areas and ending with the Economic and Monetary Union.

Starting with preferential trading areas, the APT displays two distinct profiles of countries. The members of the ASEAN¹⁴ do not seem to verify the EHTS, except Laos (but the trace exhibits a

¹¹More details of these results available upon request to the authors.

¹⁰Table 1 in Gregory and Hansen (1996) lists the asymptotical critical values for alternative models. For more details on the procedure, see Gregory and Hansen (1996) and Fountas and Wu (1999).

¹²These assumptions are quite standard. Nevertheless, we performed robustness checks supposing the data displayed no trend, as in Brüggeman and Lütkepohl (2005). Results are qualitatively unchanged. Moreover, note that, since cointegration is tested between series belonging to the same country, we do not include structural breaks in the test.

¹³Schwarz criterion tends to predict systematically a very low number of lags (generally 1 or 2), which can create serious problems with residuals properties, especially serial correlation.

¹⁴Long-term interest rate series were not available for Cambodia (see Table A.2 in Appendix).

very instable profile) and Philippines. For the other four countries, the null of no cointegration cannot be rejected at the 5% level. Conversely, China, Japan and Korea show an increasing trend for the trace. The EHTS cannot be rejected at the 1% level in Japan over almost all the sample period. For China and Korea, the EHTS seems to be validated after 2002-2003. In Korea, the upward trend of the trace is sharply interrupted twice during the nineties: financial and currency crises, especially in 1997, caused massive and extremely rapid short-term rates increase, reversing the term structure and temporarily invalidating the EHTS. Turning to the LAIA member countries, the EHTS is validated for most of them, at least on recent years; the null of no cointegration cannot be clearly rejected only for Chile, Ecuador and Uruguay. However, LAIA actually mixes two customs unions, ANDEAN and MERCOSUR (except Mexico). Consequently, it is likely that LAIA just captures the effects of these two distinct unions (see *infra*).

We now move to step 2 of Balassa's classification, i.e. free trade agreements. Started in 1983, the CER does not seem to create any synchronism between Australia and New Zealand. Whereas the trace test rejects the null of no cointegration during the nineties (at the 5% level) and since 1999-2000 (at the 1% level) for New Zealand, Australia does not verify the EHTS before 2002. EFTA graphs draw a similar picture for the current members (Iceland, Norway and Switzerland), where the EHTS is systematically rejected at the 1% level. Interestingly, Iceland and Norway's term structures do not appear to benefit from their membership to the European Economic Area¹⁵, which is supposed to strengthen trade integration between these EFTA members and EU countries. Conversely, Switzerland — which does not belong to the EEA — seems to display a consistent term structure after 1995, but only at the 5% level, and the trace graph is quite unstable. Besides, the EHTS is not corroborated for the former EFTA members (which all joined EU), except for Denmark and Finland only over the very recent period.

Turning to NAFTA, Canada and the US display a common profile over the sample period: the EHTS cannot be rejected most of the time, and the trace statistic exhibits a clear increasing trend. It is especially the case after 1992, when the NAFTA was created: the null of no cointegration is firmly rejected for both countries, mostly at the 1% level. Our sample is unfortunately much shorter for Mexico. However, the graph clearly shows the contagion effect of Argentinian currency crisis over the years 2001-2002: the EHTS is obviously rejected. Afterwards, the trace statistic starts to increase and since the end of 2004, the cointegration between short and long-term interest rates cannot be rejected at the 5% level.

We now switch to customs unions (step 3 of Balassa's classification). Starting with ANDEAN, only Ecuador cannot reject the null of no cointegration at any conventional confidence level,

¹⁵The European Economic Area (EEA) came into being on 1 January 1994 following an agreement between Liechtenstein, Norway, Sweden and all member states of the European Union (EU). It allows these EFTA countries to participate in the European single market without joining the EU.

even if the trace displays a clear upward trend at the beginning of the 21st century and seems to hit the 5% threshold at the very end of the period. Bolivia validates the EHTS since the very beginning of 2000, except during the instability period caused by the collapse of Argentinian currency board, in early 2002. The same kind of picture arises for Venezuela, except that the null of no cointegration can always be rejected at the 1% level, but the increasing trend of the trace is clearly stopped over the 2001-2002 period. Over a longer sample period, the recursive trace test shows that the EHTS cannot be rejected for Bolivia after 1992, but the graph is strongly unstable until 2001. Once again, this reflects the contagion effect of various currency crises in Latin America, such as the Mexican crisis in 1994-1995 and the Argentinian crisis in 2001-2002. Last but not least, Peru's graph offers interesting specificities. The trace statistic is below the 5% level over all the second half of the nineties, in spite of its integration in the ANDEAN free trade area in 1997. However, after the collapse of the Argentinian currency board, the trace displays an almost continuous upward trend, and the EHTS cannot be rejected any more after 2004, when Peru joined the Andean customs union.

Not much can be said on the CACM. Results could not be reported for Guatemala and Honduras, due to the lack of long-term interest rates data. Regarding Costa Rica and El Salvador, the sample is too small (around 30 observations) to draw any significant conclusion. For the only country left (Nicaragua), the trace statistic displays an overall upward profile, and the EHTS cannot be rejected after the beginning of 2004.

Over the five members belonging to MERCOSUR, four recursive trace tests validate the EHTS over almost all the sample period. For Argentina, the collapse of the currency board pegging the peso to the US dollar translated clearly on the interest rate term structure. Whereas the null of no cointegration is strongly rejected in 2000, the trace statistic rapidly decreases afterwards, and the EHTS is not anymore validated in 2001 and 2002. Afterwards, the trace graph gets back to a stable increasing trend, and the null of no cointegration is again rejected at the 1% level. Brazil, Paraguay and Venezuela also validate strongly the EHTS, with more or less upward trends. For Uruguay, the EHTS is irregularly validated until 2001-2002; afterwards, it is strongly rejected. It seems that this country never recovered fully from the crisis which hits its first trade partner, namely Argentina.

Taking the EU as a whole (steps 4 and 5 of Balassa's classification), a clear and unsurprising break arises between the Euro-12 and the 13 remaining countries of the EU. On the euro area side, almost all trace statistics display an upward trend after 1995, reflecting the pre-euro convergence. After 2002, all 12 countries validate the EHTS. This is especially striking for Austria, Finland and Portugal, for whom we restricted the sample after 1995, the year of EU entry for the first two countries. Whereas over longer sample periods these countries did not validate the EHTS (see the analysis of EFTA *supra*), the restriction on the sample after 1995 reflects the specific efforts made by these countries to enter the euro. This is especially true for Portugal, and the same kind of profile can be observed for Greece. For all other countries, the null of

RTA	Agreement according to Balassa's Classification	Number of member countries in the agreement	Number of countries validating the EHTS on most of the sample period, or since their entry in the agreement
APT			
ASEAN	PTA (1)	6	2
3	Informal meetings	3	1
LAIA	PTA (1)	11	7
CER	FTA (2)	2	1
EFTA	FTA (2)	9 (1960)/3 (2008)	2 (1960)/1(2008)
NAFTA	FTA (2)	3	2
ANDEAN	CU (3)	5	4
MERCOSUR	CU (3)	5	4
EU	CM (4)	25	20
EURO12	EMU (5)	12	11

Table 2 – Countries validating the EHTS within each RTA

Note: CACM is not presented in the Table due to the lack of data and the very short samples involved.

no cointegration was strongly rejected before 1999, but it is worth noting that the trace follows a clear upward trend in the years preceding and after the introduction of the euro. Finally, the breaks stated in 1992-1993 are obviously the consequences of the ERM crisis.

The situation of the 13 remaining EU members is more heterogenous. To make things more clear, we discriminate between Denmark, Sweden and UK on the one hand, and 2004/2007 EU newcomers on the other hand. For Sweden, we restricted the sample to the date of entry in the EU (1995). Contrary to the analysis on the whole sample, the recursive trace test tends to reject the null of no cointegration at the 5% level. For comparison purposes, we also performed a sensitivity check by restricting the sample for Denmark and UK.¹⁶ Results are qualitatively similar to those obtained on the whole sample: Denmark still validates strongly the EHTS, with a clear upward trend for the trace, and UK still rejects the EHTS strongly. Turning to Central and Eastern Europe Countries (CEECs), Bulgaria, Czech Republic and Estonia have been rejecting the null of no cointegration for several years, with a more or less upward trend for the trace statistic. For Poland and Slovenia, the EHTS is rejected on most of the sample period, but the trace follows an upward trend after 2003-2004, allowing the EHTS to be validated at the end of the sample period. Finally, for Hungary, Latvia, Lithuania and Romania, the trace is unstable and below the 5% critical value at the end of period. These differences reflect disparities in development (and therefore, trade integration in the Single Market), currency regimes and monetary policy frameworks among the CEECs.

¹⁶Graphs available upon request to the authors.

Table 2 summarizes our results. There seems to be no strong evidence that countries pertaining to PTAs (Preferential Trading Area) of FTAs (Free Trade Area) converge to validate the EHTS. Conversely, customs unions display a much stronger homogeneity for the behavior of interest rates. This is also the case for our single example of common market, EU, with only 20% of countries not validating the EHTS. Among the other ones, we find unsurprisingly that the twelve first euro area members all validate the EHTS. In short, it seems that the customs union (step 3 of the Balassa's (1961) classification) represents a decisive threshold after which there is clear trend for cointegration between short and long-term interest rates for a huge majority of member countries. In that sense, the intuition by Eichengreen and Park (2005) that "finance follows trade" only after a certain degree of trade integration is verified.

4.2. Tests of the RIP

As for EHTS test, standard unit root tests have been implemented and show that most real interest rate series are integrated of order one. In Table 3 we report the test statistics for the three models described in Section 3, as well as the estimated break point (in parentheses).¹⁷ Results focus on short-term interest rates since (i) these series are frequently available on a longer period than long-term ones and (ii) if RIP and EHTS hold in the short term, convergence of long-term interest rates should be satisfied. ¹⁸ We propose a first set of results where the convergence is measured relatively to a leader country in the considered area, generally the one with the biggest GDP and/or the leading currency. More specifically, we consider the following leading countries: Japan for ASEAN+3, UK for EFTA, US for NAFTA, Argentina and Brazil for MERCOSUR, Venezuela for ANDEAN, Costa Rica for CACM, and Germany for the European Union. As a sensitivity analysis, a second set of results is presented for ASEAN, ANDEAN, CACM and MERCOSUR, where the leading country becomes the US (Table 4). Such a robustness study should allow us to check if there is more interest rate convergence with the US short-term interest rate, due to the presence of more or less fixed exchange rate systems for many countries of these areas at a moment of their history.

¹⁷It should be noted that the Gregory-Hansen (1996) test allows for only one break point. However, since the timing of the regime shift is determined endogenously, the test statistic is computed for each possible break point and takes the smallest value (the largest negative value) across all possible break points. So, the selected break date corresponds to the most important regime shift in the series among the set of all possible break points.

¹⁸See Bekaert *et al.* (2007) among others. Detailed results concerning tests of the RIP on long-term interest rates are available upon request to the authors.

	ADF*	$Z^{*}(t)$	$Z^*(\alpha)$				
	ASEAN + 3						
Indonesic	Indonesia						
Model 1	-5.56*** (0.85)	-3.5 (0.82)	-23.74 (0.82)				
Model 2	-5.94*** (0.6)	-3.83 (0.61)	-28.3 (0.61)				
Model 3	-5.57*** (0.85)	-3.8 (0.58)	-27.73 (0.63)				
Malaysia							
Model 1	-4.77** (0.33)	-4.93** (0.33)	-44.43** (0.33)				
Model 2	-4.86* (0.33)	-5** (0.33)	-45.64* (0.33)				
Model 3	-4.68* (0.33)	-4.9* (0.33)	-43.98* (0.33)				
Philippin	es						
Model 1	-5.13*** (0.27)	-5.52*** (0.24)	-54.33*** (0.24)				
Model 2	-5.17** (0.27)	-5.65*** (0.25)	-56.5** (0.24)				
Model 3	-5.15** (0.27)	-5.58*** (0.24)	-55.32** (0.24)				
Singapor	e	· · · · ·	· · · · ·				
Model 1	-5.86*** (0.39)	-4.25 (0.38)	-34.19 (0.37)				
Model 2	-6.6*** (0.65)	-4.82* (0.65)	-43.42* (0.65)				
Model 3	-6.52*** (0.41)	-4.61 (0.4)	-40.99 (0.4)				
Thailand	(0111)						
Model 1	-4(0.18)	-3.87(0.73)	-27.88 (0.16)				
Model 2	-4.35 (0.17)	-4.1(0.61)	-31.13 (0.73)				
Model 3	-4.35 (0.28)	-4.01 (0.47)	-30.47(0.47)				
Vietnam	(0120)						
Model 1	-3 85 (0 33)	-3.02(0.29)	-18 (0.29)				
Model 2	-4 24 (0 33)	-2.63 (0.36)	-14 45 (0 36)				
Model 3	-4.03(0.33)	-2.79(0.29)	-16.01 (0.29)				
Laos	1.05 (0.55)	2.79 (0.29)	10.01 (0.2))				
Model 1	-325(048)	-2 23 (0 39)	-977(039)				
Model 2	-3.19(0.48)	-2 56 (0.36)	-1253(039)				
Model 3	-3.33(0.44)	-2.27(0.39)	-9.85 (0.39)				
Cambodi	a 5.55 (0.11)	2.27 (0.37)	9.05 (0.57)				
Model 1	-3 09 (0 37)	-2.7(0.28)	-16 39 (0 28)				
Model 2	-4.2(0.3)	-4.25(0.31)	-3351(0.31)				
Model 3	-3.22(0.3)	-3.18(0.29)	-21.07 (0.29)				
China	-3.22 (0.37)	-3.18 (0.29)	-21.07 (0.29)				
Model 1	-3.94(0.47)	-2.56(0.78)	-1258(078)				
Model 2	-5.94(0.47)	-2.30(0.76)	-12.38(0.78) 14.17(0.44)				
Model 3	-4.11(0.43)	-2.71(0.10) 2 50 (0 77)	-14.17(0.44) 13(0.27)				
Korea	-3.90 (0.47)	-2.39 (0.77)	-13 (0.27)				
Model 1	1 57* (0 15)	1 30* (0 15)	34.85 (0.15)				
Model 2	$-4.37^{\circ}(0.13)$ 5 11** (0.74)	$-4.37^{\circ}(0.13)$	-34.03 (0.13) 44.22* (0.74)				
Model 2	$-5.11^{44} (0.74)$	$-4.92^{+}(0.74)$	$-44.22^{+}(0.74)$				
widdel 3	-4.37 (0.13)	-4.39 (0.13)	-33.1 (0.13)				
Mad-11	Australi	<u>4.24* (0.20)</u>	26 62* (0.20)				
Model 1	-7.42*** (0.28)	-4.34* (0.29)	-30.03* (0.29)				
Model 2	-7.03*** (0.28)	-4.44 (0.29)	-38.31 (0.29)				
Model 3	-/.0.5*** (0.28)	-4.45 (0.29)	-38.34 (0.29)				

Table 3 – Tests of the RIP hypothesis

Note : *, **, ***: rejection of the null hypothesis of no cointegration at the 10%, 5%, 1% significance level respectively. Following the same presentation as for the EHTS tests, we start with the preferential trading areas. Only three members of the ASEAN plus Korea validate the RIP hypothesis with Japan: Malaysia, Philippines and Singapore. The break points are as follows: 1979:08 for Malaysia, 1984:04 for Philippines, 1988:06 for Singapore and 1999:04 for Korea. All those countries experienced high inflation levels in the 1980s following oil prices surge. This decade may also be regarded as a financial liberalization period in many developing countries. The break date corresponds to (i) high twin deficits in Malaysia which led to strong economic adjustment in the 1980s; (ii) low interest rates in Philippines due to authorities' operation aiming at finance the increasing fiscal deficit after the financial crisis in 1980; (iii) economic boom and lower inflation rate for Singapore after the economic crisis in 1985. For these three countries, these events seem to have caused a more larger regime shift in the series than the Asian crisis. Turning to Korea, the break date follows the Asian crisis. Less developed ASEAN countries namely Indonesia, Vietnam, Laos and Cambodia — do not exhibit interest parity with Japan. The same conclusion holds for China, the most important trade neighbour in the area. Despite heterogeneous economies, the area ASEAN + 3 records one of the most important growth rates among the world (above 5% over 1997-2007). Alongside to trade integration, initiatives have been taken to promote financial integration. The annual meeting of the Asian Development Bank held in May 2000, the "Chiang Mai Agreement", aims at strenthening cooperation among East Asian countries by promoting currency swaps arrangements.¹⁹

Turning to the CER, Australia and New Zealand take an active part in financial integration in the region and already show interest rate cointegration among their short-term interest rates. Getting on with free trade agreements, none of the EFTA countries which belong to the Euro area — Austria, Finland and Portugal — shows cointegration with the UK interest rate benchmark. In contrast, RIP holds for all countries which are not part of the Euro zone: Denmark, Iceland, Sweden and Switzerland, except Norway. The break dates occur at the beginning of the 1990s: one year after the rejection of Maastricht treaty for Denmark and before the increase of inflation during the decade. Break date in Iceland (1989:11) corresponds to the highest level inflation period, while it fits with the beginning of the recession in Sweden (1990:09) over the period 1991-1993. In Switzerland, the break date (1983) also corresponds to a high inflation period, when exchange market intervention led to stabilize the Franc over the period 1980-1982, inducing an increase in money supply.

Not surprisingly, considering NAFTA, Canada and the US show evidence of cointegration among their short-term interest rates. Turning to Mexico, the RIP holds with the US at the 10% significance level, considering a break point in 1987 before the Brady Plan in 1989. The restructuring and rescheduling of Mexico's debt payments at the beginning of the 1980s led to lower interest rates.

Mexico also belongs to MERCOSUR, the step 3 of Balassa's classification, that is customs

¹⁹For a detailed overview of the initatives taken in Asia, see Plummer and Wignaraja (2006).

	ADF*	Z*(t)	$Z^*(\alpha)$
		EFTA	
Austria			
Model 1	-4.84** (0.6)	-4.38* (0.6)	-35.07 (0.6)
Model 2	-5.1** (0.32)	-4.77* (0.33)	-40.06 (0.33)
Model 3	-4.83* (0.6)	-4.39 (0.6)	-35.12 (0.6)
Denmark			
Model 1	-5.69*** (0.54)	-6.71*** (0.57)	-80.4*** (0.57)
Model 2	-6.16*** (0.56)	-6.92*** (0.55)	-85.33*** (0.55)
Model 3	-5.73*** (0.57)	-6.73*** (0.57)	-80.88*** (0.57)
Finland			
Model 1	-4.14 (0.59)	-4.17 (0.59)	-30.15 (0.59)
Model 2	-4.48 (0.59)	-4.56 (0.59)	-38.36 (0.59)
Model 3	-4.28 (0.59)	-4.33 (0.59)	-32.84 (0.59)
Iceland			
Model 1	-5.7*** (0.16)	-6.47*** (0.34)	-68.42*** (0.33)
Model 2	-5.7*** (0.68)	-6.47*** (0.34)	-68.4*** (0.34)
Model 3	-5.93*** (0.15)	-7.79*** (0.15)	-92.6*** (0.15)
Portugal			
Model 1	-3.31 (0.2)	-3.33 (0.2)	-21.56 (0.2)
Model 2	-3.76 (0.21)	-4.07 (0.2)	-31.52 (0.2)
Model 3	-3.96 (0.23)	-4.05 (0.2)	-30.7 (0.2)
Norway			
Model 1	-4.55* (0.49)	-4.2 (0.46)	-32.14 (0.46)
Model 2	-4.52 (0.49)	-4.2 (0.46)	-32.16 (0.46)
Model 3	-4.74* (0.3)	-4.27 (0.46)	-33.65 (0.47)
Sweden			
Model 1	-3.92 (0.52)	-3.7 (0.55)	-25.81 (0.55)
Model 2	-5.93*** (0.19)	-5.78*** (0.19)	-57.86*** (0.19)
Model 3	-4.19 (0.19)	-3.93 (0.19)	-29.04 (0.19)
Switzerla	nd		
Model 1	-4.56* (0.2)	-5.79*** (0.21)	-56.17*** (0.23)
Model 2	-4.61 (0.2)	-5.91*** (0.23)	-58.77*** (0.23)
Model 3	-4.99* (0.19)	-6.04*** (0.23)	-61.85*** (0.23)
		NAFTA	
Canada			
Model 1	-4.7** (0.15)	-4.57* (0.15)	-31.98 (0.15)
Model 2	-5.55*** (0.7)	-5.5*** (0.7)	-47.04 (0.7)
Model 3	-4.64* (0.15)	-4.52 (0.15)	-33.79 (0.15)
Mexico			
Model 1	-6.24*** (0.34)	-4.66** (0.31)	-42.3** (0.31)
Model 2	-6.07*** (0.32)	-4.93* (0.31)	-47.27* (0.31)
Model 3	-6.44*** (0.34)	-4.83* (0.31)	-45.46* (0.31)

Table 3 – Tests of the RIP hypothesis (Ctd.)

Note : *, **, ***: rejection of the null hypothesis of no cointegration at the 10%, 5%, 1% significance level respectively.

	ADF*	Z*(t)	Ζ*(α)			
	Ν	IERCOSUR				
Argentina	ı/Brazil					
Model 1	-15.68*** (0.5)	-15.71*** (0.5)	-282.43*** (0.5)			
Model 2	-15.82*** (0.5)	-15.85*** (0.5)	-285.33*** (0.5)			
Model 3	-18.12*** (0.5)	-18.14*** (0.5)	-329.61*** (0.5)			
Mexico/B	razil					
Model 1	-6.74*** (0.27)	-4.67** (0.27)	-42.44** (0.27)			
Model 2	-7*** (0.28)	-5.14** (0.27)	-50.99** (0.27)			
Model 3	-6.7*** (0.27)	-4.67 (0.27)	-42.43* (0.27)			
Paraguay	/Brazil					
Model 1	-5.71*** (0.74)	-5.32*** (0.72)	-49.26** (0.72)			
Model 2	-5.83*** (0.74)	-5.41** (0.72)	-50.67** (0.72)			
Model 3	-5.85*** (0.73)	-5.36** (0.72)	-50.2** (0.72)			
Uruguay/	Brazil					
Model 1	-4.21 (0.74)	-4.03 (0.75)	-28.26 (0.75)			
Model 2	-5.13** (0.72)	-5.01** (0.72)	-43.41* (0.72)			
Model 3	-4.22 (0.74)	-4.03 (0.75)	-28.3 (0.75)			
Brazil/Arg	gentina					
Model 1	-9.96*** (0.54)	-14.48*** (0.36)	-254.21*** (0.36)			
Model 2	-10.2*** (0.54)	-14.72*** (0.54)	-260.07*** (0.54)			
Model 3	-9.96*** (0.54)	-14.48*** (0.36)	-254.24*** (0.36)			
Mexico/A	rgentina					
Model 1	-5.91*** (0.31)	-4.69** (0.28)	-42.85** (0.28)			
Model 2	-7.08*** (0.29)	-4.91* (0.29)	-46.72* (0.28)			
Model 3	-5.92*** (0.2)	-4.73* (0.28)	-43.65* (0.28)			
Paraguay	Paraguay/Argentina					
Model 1	-4.92** (0.72)	-5.04** (0.72)	-43.96** (0.72)			
Model 2	-4.94* (0.72)	-5.07** (0.72)	-44.61* (0.72)			
Model 3	-5.12** (0.72)	-5.29** (0.72)	-48.41** (0.72)			
Uruguay/	'Argentina					
Model 1	-4.26 (0.57)	-6.78*** (0.57)	-70.31*** (0.57)			
Model 2	-4.53 (0.77)	-6.88*** (0.85)	-73.29*** (0.85)			
Model 3	-4.24 (0.54)	-7.53*** (0.67)	-83.14*** (0.67)			

Table 3 – Tests of the RIP hypothesis (Ctd.)

Note : *, **, ***: rejection of the null hypothesis of no cointegration at the 10%, 5%, 1% significance level respectively.

	ADF*	Z*(t)	$Z^*(\alpha)$				
	A	ANDEAN					
Bolivia							
Model 1	-4.12 (0.66)	-4.15 (0.64)	-30.61 (0.64)				
Model 2	-4.17 (0.18)	-4.29 (0.2)	-30.94 (0.19)				
Model 3	-4.11 (0.66)	-4.25 (0.6)	-32.05 (0.6)				
Chile	Chile						
Model 1	-5.04** (0.25)	-4.66** (0.29)	-36.68* (0.28)				
Model 2	-2.28 (0.78)	-5.16** (0.8)	-41.99 (0.8)				
Model 3	-4.65 (0.24)	-4.83* (0.29)	-37.39 (0.29)				
Colombia							
Model 1	-4.49 (0.36)	-3.51 (0.32)	-22.58 (0.33)				
Model 2	-4.42 (0.36)	-3.4 (0.33)	-21.57 (0.33)				
Model 3	-4.76* (0.36)	-3.93 (0.32)	-26.28 (0.32)				
Ecuador			· · · · ·				
Model 1	-4.1 (0.45)	-3.9(0.45)	-26.48 (0.44)				
Model 2	-4.5 (0.48)	-4.42 (0.47)	-33.94 (0.47)				
Model 3	-3.78 (0.47)	-4.69* (0.45)	-35.81 (0.45)				
Peru		()					
Model 1	-3.72 (0.52)	-3.71 (0.52)	-24.24(0.52)				
Model 2	-5.05** (0.56)	-4.48 (0.53)	-37.18 (0.53)				
Model 3	-4.08 (0.57)	-4.31 (0.55)	-31.35 (0.55)				
САСМ							
Guatemal	a						
Model 1	-5.24*** (0.29)	-5.51*** (0.27)	-47.97** (0.27)				
Model 2	-5.25** (0.29)	-5.69*** (0.27)	-50.03** (0.27)				
Model 3	-5.48*** (0.29)	-5.86*** (0.27)	-52.91** (0.27)				
Honduras			. ,				
Model 1	-4.54* (0.66)	-3.33 (0.25)	-19.66 (0.25)				
Model 2	-5.28** (0.25)	-3.96 (0.25)	-27.87 (0.25)				
Model 3	-4.52 (0.66)	-3.37 (0.23)	-22.51 (0.23)				
Nicaragu	a		. ,				
Model 1	-5.51*** (0.17)	-4.06 (0.15)	-28.78 (0.15)				
Model 2	-5.23** (0.17)	-4.01 (0.15)	-28.59 (0.15)				
Model 3	-5.05** (0.18)	-4.44 (0.15)	-35.57 (0.15)				
El Salvad	or						
Model 1	-6.5*** (0.24)	-6.39*** (0.24)	-59.71*** (0.24)				
Model 2	-6.46*** (0.24)	-6.34*** (0.24)	-58.77*** (0.24)				
Model 3	-6.84*** (0.24)	-6.79*** (0.24)	-66.1*** (0.24)				

Table 3 – Tests of the RIP hypothesis (Ctd.)

Note : *, **, ***: rejection of the null hypothesis of no cointegration at the 10%, 5%, 1% significance level respectively.

	ADF*	Z*(t)	$Z^*(\alpha)$
	EU	ROPEAN UNION	
UK			
Model 1	-6.17*** (0.15)	-5.02** (0.15)	-48.22** (0.15)
Model 2	-6.19*** (0.15)	-5.02** (0.15)	-48.08** (0.15)
Model 3	-6.29*** (0.15)	-5.06** (0.15)	-49.1** (0.15)
Poland	× /	× /	· · ·
Model 1	-5.45*** (0.27)	-3.88 (0.24)	-28.55 (0.24)
Model 2	-5.28** (0.27)	-3.92 (0.24)	-29 (0.26)
Model 3	-5.5*** (0.35)	-5.6*** (0.3)	-53.39** (0.3)
Romania		. ,	· · · ·
Model 1	-5.64*** (0.16)	-5.16*** (0.15)	-46.94** (0.15)
Model 2	-7*** (0.16)	-5.83*** (0.16)	-57.49*** (0.16)
Model 3	-5.77*** (0.16)	-5.19** (0.15)	-46.67* (0.15)
Hungary		. ,	
Model 1	-4.37* (0.84)	-3.14 (0.85)	-17.83 (0.85)
Model 2	-4.17 (0.82)	-3.13 (0.85)	-17.82 (0.85)
Model 3	-4.31 (0.82)	-3.36 (0.69)	-20.31 (0.69)
Czech Re	p.		
Model 1	-3.95 (0.18)	-3.75 (0.17)	-27.44 (0.17)
Model 2	-4.24 (0.18)	-3.98 (0.19)	-29.97 (0.19)
Model 3	-3.96 (0.18)	-3.81 (0.17)	-27.91 (0.17)
Sweden			
Model 1	-3.74 (0.59)	-3.5 (0.59)	-23.45 (0.59)
Model 2	-5.88*** (0.18)	-5.68*** (0.18)	-55.98** (0.19)
Model 3	-4.39 (0.16)	-4.27 (0.16)	-33.77 (0.16)
Bulgaria			
Model 1	-6.25*** (0.35)	-5.35*** (0.37)	-49.34** (0.37)
Model 2	-6.23*** (0.35)	-5.39** (0.37)	-49.89** (0.37)
Model 3	-6.31*** (0.34)	-5.76*** (0.37)	-56.07** (0.37)
Denmark			
Model 1	-5.17*** (0.54)	-6.67*** (0.52)	-78.6*** (0.52)
Model 2	-5.62*** (0.53)	-7*** (0.51)	-85.73*** (0.52)
Model 3	-5.21** (0.29)	-6.95*** (0.3)	-84.61*** (0.3)
Slovenia			
Model 1	-4.33 (0.3)	-3.7 (0.27)	-23.62 (0.27)
Model 2	-4.43 (0.3)	-3.73 (0.27)	-24.08 (0.27)
Model 3	-4.35 (0.3)	-4.06 (0.26)	-26.83 (0.26)
Lithuania	!		
Model 1	-7.86*** (0.28)	-4.02 (0.26)	-25.66 (0.26)
Model 2	-8.45*** (0.44)	-4.09 (0.51)	-25.39 (0.57)
Model 3	-7.77*** (0.28)	-3.99 (0.26)	-25.79 (0.26)
Latvia			
Model 1	-3.84 (0.27)	-5.72*** (0.24)	-55.92*** (0.24)
Model 2	-4.62 (0.34)	-6.6*** (0.39)	-68.45*** (0.39)
Model 3	-3.89 (0.23)	-5.74*** (0.24)	-56.39** (0.23)
Estonia			
Model 1	-4.56* (0.19)	-4.42* (0.16)	-31.75 (0.16)
Model 2	-4.7 (0.26)	-4.45 (0.16)	-32.69 (0.16)
Model 3	-5.29** (0.26)	-4.75*(0.27)	-40.06(0.27)

Table 3 – Tests of the RIP hypothesis (Ctd.)

*, **, ***: rejection of the null hypothesis of no cointegration at the 10%, 5%, 1% significance level respectively. Critical values are -4.34, -4.61 and -5.13 for Model 1, -4.72, -4.99 and -5.45 for Model 2, -4.68, -4.95 and -5.47 for Model 3. The critical values are provided by Gregory and Hansen (1996, Table 1). The numbers in parentheses are the break points reported as a percentage of the sample size.

Note :

	ADF*	Z*(t)	$Z^*(\alpha)$
	A	SEAN +3	
Indonesia	ı		
Model 1	-5.55*** (0.85)	-3.5 (0.82)	-23.84 (0.61)
Model 2	-5.91*** (0.59)	-3.8 (0.61)	-27.86 (0.61)
Model 3	-5.57*** (0.6)	-3.57 (0.61)	-24.92 (0.61)
Maly			
Model 1	-4.45* (0.34)	-4.42* (0.33)	-35.88 (0.33)
Model 2	-4.55 (0.34)	-4.48 (0.33)	-36.87 (0.33)
Model 3	-4.78 (0.15)	-4.81* (0.15)	-43.12 (0.15)
Philippin	es		
Model 1	-5.06** (0.27)	-5.57*** (0.25)	-54.33*** (0.25)
Model 2	-5.16** (0.27)	-5.77*** (0.25)	-57.97*** (0.25)
Model 3	-5.19** (0.27)	-5.75*** (0.25)	-57.73*** (0.25)
Singapor	2	· · · · ·	~ /
Model 1	-5.81*** (0.24)	-3.47 (0.74)	-22.86 (0.74)
Model 2	-5.68*** (0.44)	-3.55 (0.24)	-24.53 (0.24)
Model 3	-5.91*** (0.17)	-4.97** (0.15)	-47.5** (0.15)
Thailand	· · · · ·	· · · ·	
Model 1	-5.04** (0.74)	-4.96** (0.73)	-46.3** (0.73)
Model 2	-5.21** (0.74)	-5.14** (0.73)	-49.51** (0.73)
Model 3	-5.19** (0.17)	-5.05** (0.73)	-47.94** (0.73)
Vietnam		· · · ·	
Model 1	-3.29 (0.5)	-2.31 (0.45)	-12.39 (0.45)
Model 2	-3.84 (0.33)	-2.72 (0.15)	-15.07 (0.15)
Model 3	-3.14 (0.46)	-2.72 (0.45)	-17.6 (0.45)
Laos		~ /	
Model 1	-3.2 (0.48)	-2.22 (0.39)	-9.78 (0.39)
Model 2	-3.16 (0.41)	-2.44 (0.39)	-11.92 (0.39)
Model 3	-2.95 (0.28)	-2.87 (0.3)	-15.5 (0.3)
Cambodi	a	~ /	
Model 1	-2.5 (0.29)	-2.51 (0.29)	-14.3 (0.29)
Model 2	-4.38 (0.31)	-4.33 (0.31)	-34.14 (0.31)
Model 3	-3.18 (0.45)	-3.19 (0.45)	-22.64 (0.45)
China		~ /	
Model 1	-4.12 (0.47)	-2.59(0.49)	-14.21 (0.49)
Model 2	-4.14 (0.47)	-2.62 (0.43)	-14.27 (0.43)
Model 3	-4.18 (0.41)	-3.41 (0.6)	-20.65 (0.6)
Korea		× /	~ /
Model 1	-5.02** (0.17)	-4.42* (0.46)	-37.33* (0.46)
Model 2	-5.75*** (0.73)	-5** (0.74)	-46.7* (0.74)
Model 3	-5.11*** (0.17)	-4.49 (0.15)	-38.12 (0.75)

Table 4 – Tests of the RIP hypothesis. Robustness check

Note : *, **, ***: rejection of the null hypothesis of no cointegration at the 10%, 5%, 1% significance level respectively.

	ADF*	Z*(t)	$Z^*(\alpha)$			
	MERCOSUR					
Argentina						
Model 1	-12.04*** (0.38)	-13.08*** (0.38)	-230.23*** (0.38)			
Model 2	-12.9*** (0.37)	-13.18*** (0.37)	-232.6*** (0.37)			
Model 3	-12.09*** (0.38)	-13.12*** (0.38)	-231.08*** (0.38)			
Mexico						
Model 1	-6*** (0.3)	-4.56* (0.27)	-40.55** (0.27)			
Model 2	-5.86*** (0.28)	-4.8* (0.27)	-44.72* (0.27)			
Model 3	-6.37*** (0.3)	-4.67 (0.27)	-42.52* (0.27)			
Paraguay						
Model 1	-4.76** (0.73)	-4.9** (0.73)	-41.91** (0.73)			
Model 2	-4.81* (0.26)	-4.92* (0.73)	-42.36* (0.73)			
Model 3	-4.85* (0.73)	-5** (0.73)	-43.57* (0.73)			
Uruguay						
Model 1	-4.23 (0.73)	-4.02 (0.73)	-27.51 (0.73)			
Model 2	-5.54*** (0.73)	-5.46*** (0.73)	-50.36** (0.73)			
Model 3	-4.32 (0.73)	-4.11 (0.73)	-28.51 (0.73)			
Brazil						
Model 1	-12*** (0.54)	-11.99*** (0.54)	-199.34*** (0.54)			
Model 2	-12.21*** (0.36)	-12.21*** (0.36)	-204.96*** (0.36)			
Model 3	-12.04*** (0.54)	-12.03*** (0.54)	-200.53*** (0.54)			
		ANDEAN				
Bolivia						
Model 1	-3.92 (0.57)	-3.81 (0.64)	-22.52 (0.64)			
Model 2	-4.17 (0.2)	-4.26 (0.64)	-30.48 (0.64)			
Model 3	-4.04 (0.57)	-4.04 (0.64)	-24.37 (0.64)			
Chile						
Model 1	-2.51 (0.62)	-4.89** (0.59)	-41.42** (0.59)			
Model 2	-2.45 (0.6)	-5.33** (0.41)	-44.06** (0.41)			
Model 3	-2.66 (0.6)	-4.95** (0.59)	-41.99* (0.59)			
Colombia						
Model 1	-4.26 (0.36)	-2.93 (0.41)	-17.18 (0.41)			
Model 2	-4.24 (0.36)	-2.94 (0.34)	-17.18 (0.39)			
Model 3	-4.48 (0.36)	-3.82 (0.3)	-25.79 (0.31)			
Ecuador						
Model 1	-3.24 (0.17)	-2.92 (0.17)	-16.31 (0.17)			
Model 2	-4.1 (0.2)	-3.63 (0.17)	-23.96 (0.17)			
Model 3	-3.55 (0.41)	-3.29 (0.4)	-16.07 (0.23)			
Peru						
Model 1	-3.47 (0.17)	-3.47 (0.2)	-23.91 (0.2)			
Model 2	-4.09 (0.23)	-3.95 (0.2)	-28.75 (0.2)			
Model 3	-3.69(0.23)	-3.42(0.21)	-2343(021)			

Table 4 – Tests of the RIP hypothesis. Robustness check (Ctd.)

Note : *, **, ***: rejection of the null hypothesis of no cointegration at the 10%, 5%, 1% significance level respectively.

	ADF*	Z*(t)	$Z^*(\alpha)$
		CACM	
Guatema	la		
Model 1	-4.29 (0.64)	-4.65** (0.66)	-35.73 (0.66)
Model 2	-4.78* (0.24)	-4.98* (0.66)	-39.99 (0.66)
Model 3	-4.74* (0.64)	-5.17** (0.65)	-42.76* (0.65)
Hondura	5		
Model 1	-4.87** (0.66)	-3.04 (0.7)	-18.3 (0.7)
Model 2	-5.1** (0.66)	-3.22 (0.25)	-20.83 (0.27)
Model 3	-4.85* (0.66)	-3.05 (0.7)	-18.42 (0.7)
Nicaragu	а		
Model 1	-3.69 (0.15)	-3.99 (0.15)	-27.84 (0.15)
Model 2	-3.67 (0.15)	-3.98 (0.15)	-27.7 (0.15)
Model 3	-6.18*** (0.16)	-6.54*** (0.18)	-59.79*** (0.18)
El Salvad	lor		
Model 1	-4.07 (0.25)	-5.41*** (0.25)	-45.19** (0.25)
Model 2	-4.72* (0.26)	-5.61*** (0.25)	-47.57* (0.25)
Model 3	-7.89*** (0.24)	-7.9*** (0.23)	-82.11*** (0.24)
Note :	*, **, ***: rejection	of the null hypothesis of	of no cointegration
	at the 10%, 5%, 1%	significance level respe	ctively.
			-

Table 4 – Tests of the RIP hypothesis. Robustness check (Ctd.)

at the 10%, 5%, 1% significance level respectively. Critical values are -4.34, -4.61 and -5.13 for Model 1, -4.72, -4.99 and -5.45 for Model 2, -4.68, -4.95 and -5.47 for Model 3. The critical values are provided by Gregory and Hansen (1996, Table 1). The numbers in parentheses are the break points reported as a percentage of the sample size. unions. Results show evidence of strong cointegration among interest rates whichever country benchmark is used to test the RIP, Argentina or Brazil and the United States as a robustness test. In Mexico, the smallest test statistics indicated that the break point in the sample also occurs before the Brady Plan. When considering the United States as benchmark, the breakpoints correspond to the monetary regime shifts in Argentina and Brazil after the hyperinflation period, respectively in 1990 and 1994. In ANDEAN countries, with Venezuela as the benchmark, the null hypothesis of no cointegration is not rejected. Robustness tests are not so convincing. The ANDEAN, except Ecuador, community has shown a downward trend of inflation since the beginning of the last decade. However, inflation still stands at levels well above the MERCO-SUR. As for the CACM countries, they seem to show interest rate cointegration considering either Costa Rica or the United States as the benchmark. Guatemala and Salvador, two of the largest economies within the CACM, show strong evidence of cointegration with the third one, the Costa Rica and with the United States, the most important trade partner of the area. The tests reveal a break at the end of the last century for both countries. In 1999, because of a large trade deficit, Guatemala saw its currency (quetzal) depreciate by 15% and the central bank decided to increase interest rates. At the same time, El Salvador also experienced a large trade deficit but has faced high interest rates since the civil war that led to dollarization in 2001. As a consequence, the country presents the lowest inflation and interest rates in the region. On the contrary, the hypothesis of no cointegration is not rejected for Honduras and Nicaragua, two countries which beneficiated of the Heavily Indebted Poor Country Initiative (HIPC). From a general point of view, no significant differences appear in terms of RIP for Latin-American customs unions²⁰ when considering either a regional leader or the US, as for the ASEAN.

With regard to the European Union, there is no evidence of RIP in less developed countries of EU with Germany as reference. Results are disparate across economies in transition. Poland, Romania, Bulgaria and Latvia positively respond to interest cointegration with Germany, while Hungary, Czech Republic, Slovenia, Lithuania and Estonia do not. For all countries meeting the RIP hypothesis, break dates correspond to an increase in the inflation rate following economic expansion in the second part of the 1990s. The former socialist countries (CEECs) also adopted various monetary regimes in order to stabilize their monetary framework before entering the EU.

5. CONCLUSION

The aim of this paper was to investigate the degree of financial integration, following the degree of trade integration according to Balassa's (1961) classification, from preferential trading area to complete economic integration. To this end, we rely on interest rates in order to test two conditions for financial integration: the expectations hypothesis of the term structure of interest rates (EHTS) and the real interest rate parity (RIP). Both conditions are tested on a selection of

²⁰The only exception could be Nicaragua, but a break in the trend is not very reliable since the available time span is quite short.

regional trade agreements to check for differences according to various degrees of trade integration.

Relying on cointegration techniques accounting for potential breaks, our results show that customs unions, corresponding to step 3 of the Balassa's (1961) classification, seem to be a decisive threshold after which financial integration robustly takes place. Indeed, while EHTS and RIP are not clearly evidenced for preferential trading and free trade areas such as ASEAN+3, LAIA, and EFTA, both conditions are verified for customs unions such as ANDEAN, CACM, MER-COSUR and the European Union. On the whole, our results are consistent with Eichengreen and Park's (2005) intuition that "finance follows trade" only after a certain degree of trade integration.

A natural extension of this paper would rely on panel cointegration techniques. Since structural breaks are clearly at work in our considered countries, a promising approach is to go further than panel standard tests by allowing for breaks in panel cointegration tests. This is left for future research.

REFERENCES

- Aviat, A., Coeurdacier, N., 2007. "The geography of trade in goods and asset holdings", *Journal* of International Economics 71: 22-51.
- Balassa, B., 1961. The Theory of Economic Integration. Richard D. Irvin: Homewood (IL).
- Barro, R. J., Sala-i-Martin, X., 1990. "World real interest rates", in Blanchard, O. J. and Fisher, S. (eds.), NBER Macroeconomics Annual, Cambridge, MA: MIT Press.
- Bekaert G., Wei, M., Xing, Y., 2007. "Uncovered Interest Rate Parity and the Term Structure". *Journal of International Money and Finance* 26: 1038-1069.
- Bouvatier, V., 2007. "Are International Interest Rate Differentials Driven by the Risk Premium? The Case of Asian Countries". *Economics Bulletin* 5(6): 1-14.
- Bredin, D., Cuthbertson, K., 2000. "The Expectations Hypothesis of the Term Structure: The Case of Ireland". Technical Paper 1/RT/00, Central Bank of Ireland.
- Brüggeman, R., Lütkepohl, H., 2005. "Uncovered Interest Rate Parity and the Expectations Hypothesis of the Term Structure: Empirical Results for the US and Europe". *Applied Economics Quarterly* 51: 143-154.
- Camarero, M., Ordóñez J., Tamarit, C., 2008. "The Expectations Hypothesis of the Term Structure in the Euro Area". *Economics Bulletin* 3(3): 1-15.
- Carrère, C., 2006. "Revisiting the Effects of Regional Trade Agreements on Trade Flows with Proper Specifications of the Gravity Model", *European Economic Review* 59: 223-247.

- Christiansen, H., Pigot, C., 1997. "Long interest rates in globalized marlets", OECD Working Papers Series GD97-67.
- Cuthbertson, K., 1996a. "The Expectations Hypothesis of the Term Structure: The UK Interbank Market", *Economic Journal*, 106: 578-592.
- Cuthbertson, K., 1996b. Quantitative Financial Economics, Wiley.
- Dornbusch, R., 1976. "Expectations and Exchange Rate Dynamics". *Journal of Political Economy* 84(6): 1161-1176.
- Eichengreen, B., Park, Y. C., 2005. "Why Has There Been Less Financial Integration in Asia than in Europe?". In Y.C. Park, Ito T. and Wang Y. (eds.), *A New Financial Market Structure for East Asia* (pp. 84-103). Edward Elgar: Cheltenham.
- Frankel, J., 1979. "On the Mark: a Theory of Floating Exchange Rates Based on Real Interest Differentials". *American Economic Review* 69: 610-622.
- Frankel, J., 1997. *Regional Trading Blocks in the World Economic System*. Institute for International Economics: Washington (DC).
- Frankel, J., Rose, A., 1997. "Is EMU more justifiable ex post than ex ante?", *European Economic Review*, 41: 753-760.
- Frankel, J., Rose, A., 1998. "The Endogeneity of the Optimum Currency Area Criteria", *Economic Journal*, 108(49).
- Frenkel, J., 1976. "A Monetary Approach to the Exchange Rate: Doctrinal Aspects of Empirical Evidence". *Scandinavian Journal of Economics* 78: 200-224.
- Fountas, S., Wu, J.-L., 1999. "Testing for Real Interest Rate Convergence in European Countries", *Scottish Journal Of Political Economy* 46(2): 158-174.
- Gregroy, A., Hansen, B., 1996. "Residual-based tests for cointegration in models with regime shifts", *Journal of Econometrics* 70: 99-126.
- Johansen, S., 1988. "Statistical Analysis of Cointegration Vectors". Journal of Economic Dynamics and Control 12: 231-254.
- Johansen, S., Juselius K., 1990. "Maximum Likelihood Estimation and Inferences on Cointegration - with Applications to the Demand for Money". *Oxford Bulletin of Economics and Statistics* 52: 169-210.
- Krugman, P., 1991. "Target Zones and Exchange Rate Dynamics". Quarterly Journal of Economics 106(3): 669-682.
- Lardic, S., Mignon, V., 2004. "Fractional Cointegration and the Term Structure". *Empirical Economics* 29: 723-736.
- Mussa, M. 1976. "The Exchange Rate, the Balance of Payments, and Monetary and Fiscal Policy under a Regime of Controlled Floating". *Scandinavian Journal Of Economics* 78: 229-248.
- Obstfeld, M., Rogoff, K., 2000. "The six major puzzles in international macroeconomics: is there a common cause?" *NBER Macroeconomics Annual*.
- Pagan, A.R., Hall, A.D., Martin, V., 1996. "Modelling the Term Structure", in Maddala G.S.

and Rao C.R. (eds), *Statistical Methods in Finance. Handbook of Statistics*, 14: 91-118, Amsterdam: North Holland.

- Plummer, M., Wignaraja, G., 2006. "The post-crisis sequencing of economic integration in Asia: Trade as a complement to a monetary future". *Economie Internationale* 107: 59-85.
- Pomfret, R., 2006. "Regional Trade Agreements". In Fratianni, M. and Rugman, A. (eds.), *Regional Economic Integration*. Elsevier.
- Reimers, H. 1991. "Comparisons of Tests for Multivariate Cointegration". *Statistical Papers* 33: 335-359.
- Reinsel, G., Ahn S. 1992. "Vector Autoregressive Models with Unit Roots and Reduced Rank Structure: Estimation, Likelihood Ratio, and Forecasting". *Journal of Time Series analysis* 13: 353-375
- Rose, A., 2005. "One reason countries pay their debts: renegotiation and international trade". *Journal of Development Economics* 77: 189–206.
- Rose, A., Spiegel, M., 2002. "A gravity model of sovereign lending: trade, default and credit". NBER Working 9285.
- Serrat, A., 2001. "A dynamic equilibrium model of international portfolio holdings". *Econometrica* 69: 1467–1489
- Shiller, R.J., 1990. "The Term Structure of Interest rates", in Friedman B. and Hahn F. (eds), *Handbook of Monetary Economics*, Elsevier.
- Soloaga, I, Winters, A. 2001. "How has Regionalism in the 1990s affected Trade?", North American Journal of Economics and Finance 12: 1-29.
- Vicard, V., 2008. "On Trade Creation and Regional Trade Agreements: Does Depth Matter?", *Review of World Economics*, forthcoming.
- Weber, E., 2006. "British Interest Rate Convergence Between The US And Europe: A Recursive Cointegration Analysis". *The Icfai Journal of Monetary Economics* 0(4): 29-47.

APPENDIX

RTA	ANDEAN (1969)	APT (ASEAN (1967)+3) CACM (1960)	CER (1983)	EFTA (1960)	
Definition	Andean Community	Association of South-Eas	t Central American	Closer Economic	European Free	
	of Nations	Asian Nations	Common Market	Relations	Frade Agreement	
member countries	Bolivia	Cambodia	Costa Rica	Australia	Austria (1.1995)	
	Colombia	Indonesia	El Salvador	New Zealand I	Denmark (1.1973)	
	Ecuador	Laos	Guatemala		Finland (1.1995)	
	Peru (e.1997/2004)	Malaysia	Honduras		Iceland	
	Venezuela (1.2006)	Philippines	Nicaragua		Norway	
		Singapore	-	I	Portugal (l. 1986)	
		Thailand			Sweden (1.1995)	
		(+3)			Switzerland	
		China		Unit	ed Kingdom (l.1973)	
		Japan				
		Korea				
	E 10 (1000)(
RIA I	Euro area 12 (1999) ^{a}	EU (1957)	LAIA (1980)	MERCOSUR (1991)	NAFIA (1992)	
Definition		European Union	Latin American	Mercado Comun	North American Free	
		(=Euro area +)	Integration Association	n del Sur	Trade Agreement	
member countries	Austria	Bulgaria (e.2007)	Argentina	Argentina	Canada	
	Belgium	Czech Republic (e.2004)	Brazil	Brazil	Mexico	
	Finland	Denmark (e.1973)	Bolivia	Paraguay	United States	
	France	Estonia (e.2004)	Chile	Uruguay		
	Germany	Hungary (e.2004)	Colombia	Venezuela		
	Greece	Latvia (e.2004)	Ecuador	Associate		
	Ireland	Lithuania (e.2004)	Mexico	Bolivia		
	Italy	Poland (e.2004)	Paraguay	Chile		
	Luxembourg	Romania (e.2007)	Peru	Colombia		
	Netherlands	Slovak Republic (e.2004)	Uruguay	Ecuador		
	Portugal	Slovenia (e.2004)	Venezuela	Peru		
	Spain	Sweden (e.1995)				
		United Kingdom (e.1973)				

Table A.1 – Definition of the RTAs and exchange rate regime specificities

Note: "e.X" represents the year when the considered country entered the RTA. "l.X" represents the year when the considered country left the RTA.

a: We decided to consider only the 11 euro area "founding members" plus Greece: Slovenia entered the euro area only in 2007, and Cyprus and Malta do not appear in our sample due to the lack of data availability.

Source Pariod Source Pariod Source Austraia IFS 0.1.970-05.2008 Reserve Bank of Austraia 0.1.970-07.2008 ItFS Austrai Eurostat 0.1.990-05.2008 Reserve Bank of Austraia 0.1.1970-07.2008 Statistics Austria Belgium Eurostat 0.1.990-04.2008 Resures 0.1.1987-03.2008 ItFS Bolivia IFS 0.1.1991-04.2008 Resures 0.2.000-04.2008 ItFS Bulgaria IFS 0.1.1970-05.2008 Resures 0.2.000-04.2008 ItFS Cambodia IFS 0.1.1970-05.2008 Resures 0.2.000-04.2008 ItFS Chile 12.1990-05.2008 Resures 0.1.1970-07.2008 ItFS China IFS 0.1.9970-03.2008 Reserve Bank 0.5.2005-04.2008 ItFS Colombia 0.1.980-05.2008 Reserve Bank 0.5.2005-04.2008 ItFS Cacch Republic IFS 0.1.997-03.2008 Reserve Bank 0.1.997-03.2008 ItFS Dennarak Eurostat 0.1.9		Short tarm i	ntarast ratas	Long term inter	et ratas	СРІ
Cataloy Data Data Data Data Australia IFS 01.170-05.2008 Reserve Bank of Australia 01.1970-07.2008 IETS Australia Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Reserve Bank of Australia 01.1970-07.2008 IETS Belgium Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Resters 01.1970-07.2008 IETS Brazil IFS 01.1970-07.2008 Resters 05.2001-06.2008 IETS Brazil IFS 01.1970-05.2008 Reatters 05.2001-06.2008 IETS Canada IFS 01.1970-05.2008 Reatters 01.1970-07.2008 IFS China TFS 01.1970-05.2008 Reatters 01.1970-07.2008 IFS China TFS 01.1970-05.2008 Reatters 01.1970-07.2008 IFS Costa Rica Costa Rica Costa Rica 05.2005-04.2008 IFS Costa Rica 01.1970-05.2008 Reatters 01.1970-07.2008 IFS Demant/ Eurostat 01.1970-04.2008 Reatters <	Country	Source	Pariod	Source	Pariod	Source
Austria In S 01119/0-02.2008 Recurve Film Or Maxima 01119/1-07.2008 Statistics Austria Belgium Eurostat 011970-05.2008 Reuters 011970-07.2008 Statistics Austria Bolivia IFS 011970-05.2008 Reuters 012970-07.2008 IFS Brazil IFS 0119970-04.2008 Reuters 05.2001-06.2008 IFS Bulgaria IFS 01.1997-04.2008 Reuters 05.2001-06.2008 IFS Cambodia IFS 01.1996-06.2008 Reuters 01.1976-05.2008 IFS Cambodia IFS 01.1976-05.2008 Reuters 01.1976-05.2008 IFS Colombia IFS 01.1996-05.2008 Reuters 01.1986-05.2008 IFS Costa Rica IFS/Reserve Bank 01.1986-05.2008 Reuters 01.1986-05.2008 IFS Cacch Republic IFS 01.1997-04.2008 Reaters 01.1970-07.208 IFS Cacch Republic IFS 01.1970-04.2008 Reaters 01.1970-07.208 IFS <t< td=""><td>Australia</td><td>IES</td><td>01 1070 05 2008</td><td>Pasarya Bank of Australia</td><td>01 1070 07 2008</td><td>IES</td></t<>	Australia	IES	01 1070 05 2008	Pasarya Bank of Australia	01 1070 07 2008	IES
Austina Eurosca 01.1970-07.2008 Neutres 01.1971-07.2008 Natistra Austina Belgium Eurostat 01.1970-07.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 Natistra Austina Bolivia IFS 01.1995-03.2008 Datastream 01.1987-03.2008 IFS Brazil IFS 01.1990-07.2008 Reuters 01.2000-04.2008 Natistra Austina Cambodia IFS 01.1990-05.2008 Reuters 00.2006-02.008 Natistra Austina Canada IFS 01.1990-05.2008 Bank of Canada 01.1987-05.2008 IFS Cohnia IFS 01.1990-05.2008 Reuters 01.2086-05.2008 IFS Cohnia IFS 01.1990-07.2008 Reuters 03.2098-06.2008 IFS Cota Rica IFS 01.1990-07.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 Statistics Dennark Ecuador Datastream 01.1970-07.2008 Restree Bank 01.2007-05.2008 IFS Econia IFS 01.990-05.2008 Reaters 01.2001-05.2008 IFS	Austria	Eurostat	01.1970-05.2008	Reserve Balk of Australia	01.1970-07.2008	II'S Statistics Austria
	Rusuia	Eurostat	01.1980-05.2008	Reuters + II'S	01.1971-07.2008	National Bank
Interpret Interpret Interpret Interpret Brazil IFS 11.995-03.2008 Datastream 01.1987-03.2008 IFS Brazil IFS 01.1991-04.2008 Reuters 10.2000-04.2008 National Stat. Institute Cambodia IFS 01.1970-05.2008 Bank of Canada 01.970-07.2008 IFS Chile 12.1999-05.2008 Bank of Canada 01.987-05.2008 NETS Cohma FS 01.1980-05.2008 Reuters 10.2000-06.2008 NETS Costa Rica IFS/Reserve Bank 01.1987-03.2008 Reuters 01.1986-05.2008 IFS Denmark Eurostat 01.1993-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 Statistics Denmark Ecuador Datastream 01.1970-03.2008 Reatures 01.1970-07.2008 Statistics Denmark Ecuador Datastream 01.1970-03.2008 Reatures 01.1970-07.2008 IFS Ecundar IFS Perpande Reatures 01.1970-07.2008 IFS Ecunosta 01.1980-05.2008	Beigium	Eurostat	01.1970-03.2008	Reulers	01.1970-07.2008	national Bank
Boltvia IFS 01.195-05.2008 Dialstream 01.198-05.2008 IFS 05.2001-06.2008 IFS 05.2008 IFS 05.20	D.I.	TEC	01 1005 02 2000	D	01 1007 02 2000	of Bergium
Brazil IPS $12,1979-04,2008$ Reuters $10,2000-04,2008$ National Stat. Institute Cambodia IFS 0.1991-04,2008 NA NA NA IFS Cambodia IFS 0.1970-05,2008 Bank of Canada 0.1970-07,2008 IFS Chile 1.21990-05,2008 Reuters 0.1987-05,2008 IFS Colombia 0.1.986-05,2008 Reuters 0.1.986-05,2008 IFS Costa Rica 0.1.998-05,2008 Reuters 0.1.998-06,2008 IFS Denmark Eurostat 0.1.993-05,2008 Reuters 0.1.997-07,2008 IFS Denmark Eurostat 0.1.993-05,2008 Reuters 0.1.970-07,2008 IFS Ecuador Datastream 0.3.1970-04,2008 Reuters 0.1.2001-05,2008 IFS El Salvador Reserve Bank 01.1997-03,2008 Reuters 0.1.2001-05,2008 IFS Finland Eurostat 0.1.990-05,2008 Bank of Finance 0.1.970-07,2008 IFS Guatemala Reserve Bank 01	Bolivia	IFS	01.1995-03.2008	Datastream	01.1987-03.2008	IFS
	Brazil	IFS	12.19/9-04.2008	Reuters	10.2000-04.2008	IFS
Cambodia IPS $05.1994-03.2008$ NA NA IPS Canada IFS 01.1970-05.2008 Bank of Canada 01.1970-07.2008 IFS Chile 12.1999-05.2008 Reuters 10.2004-06.2008 IFS Costa Rica IFS/Reserve Bank 01.1986-05.2008 Reuters 10.1970-07.2008 IFS Costa Rica of Costa Rica of Costa Rica 01.1980-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 IFS Denmark Eurostat 01.1990-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 IFS Ecuador Datastream 03.1970-04.2008 Reserve Bank 01.1970-07.2008 IFS El Salvador Reserve Bank 01.1970-05.2008 Bank of France 01.2001-05.2008 IFS Finland Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Bank of France 01.1970-07.2008 IFS Garatemala Reserve Bank 01.1970-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 IFS Grance Eurostat 01.1980-05.2008 Reuters 02.1970-05.2008 IFS	Bulgaria	IFS	01.1991-04.2008	Reuters	05.2001-06.2008	National Stat. Institute
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Cambodia	IFS	05.1994-03.2008	NA	NA	IFS
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Canada	IFS	01.1970-05.2008	Bank of Canada	01.1970-07.2008	IFS
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Chile		12.1999-05.2008		01.1987-05.2008	IFS
Colombia 01.1986-05.2008 Reuters 01.1986-05.2008 IFS Costa Rica IFS/Reserve Bank 01.1993-05.2008 Reuters 03.1998-06.2008 IFS Czech Republic IFS 01.1993-05.2008 Reuters 03.1998-06.2008 IFS Denmark Eurostat 01.1993-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 Statistics Denmark Eurodor Datastream 03.1990-04.2008 Reuters 01.1930-42.008 IFS Eurodor of Salvador of Salvador of Salvador IFS IFS Estonia IFS 09.1993-04.2008 Eurostat 01.2001-05.2008 IFS France Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Bank of Finance 01.1970-07.2008 IFS Greece Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 IFS Guatemala Reserve Bank 0.1192-03.2008 NA IFS Indonesia IFS 01.1982-03.2008 Reuters 02.1997-06.2008 IFS Indonesia IFS 01.1992-03.2	China	IFS	01.1980-04.2008	Reuters	10.2004-06.2008	NBS of China
Costa Rica IFS/Reserve Bank of L1970-03.2008 Reserve Bank of Costa Rica of Costa Rica 0f Costa Rica of Costa Rica IFS Czech Republic IFS 0.1.1993-05.2008 Reuters 0.1.1993-06.2008 IFS Denmark Eurostat 0.1.1980-05.2008 Reuters 0.1.1983-04.2008 IFS El Salvador Datastream 0.1.1997-03.2008 Reserve Bank 0.1.2001-05.2008 IFS Estonia IFS 0.9.1993-04.2008 Eurostat 0.1.2001-05.2008 IFS Finland Eurostat 0.1.1970-05.2008 Bank of France 0.1.1970-07.2008 IFS Greace Eurostat 0.1.1970-05.2008 Bank of France 0.1.1970-07.2008 IFS Greace Eurostat 0.1.1970-05.2008 Reuters 0.1.1970-06.2008 IFS Hungary Eurostat 0.1.198-03.2008 NA IFS Indonesia IFS 0.1.198-03.2008 Reuters 02.1997-06.2008 IFS Indonesia IFS 0.1.198-03.2008 Reuters 01.1970-05.2008 IFS	Colombia		01.1986-05.2008	Reuters	01.1986-05.2008	IFS
of Costa Rica Czech Republic IFS 0.1.1993-05.2008 Reuters 0.1.1970-07.2008 Statistics Denmark Eurodor Datastream 0.1.1970-07.2008 Reuters 0.1.1970-07.2008 Statistics Denmark Eurodor Datastream 0.1.1970-07.2008 Reserve Bank 0.1.1970-07.2008 IFS El Salvador Reserve Bank 0.1.1970-05.2008 Bank of France 0.1.2001-05.2008 IFS France Eurostat 0.1.1970-05.2008 Bank of France 0.1.1970-07.2008 FES Germany Eurostat 0.1.1970-05.2008 Reuters 0.1.1970-05.2008 IFS Guatemala Reserve Bank 0.1.1980-05.2008 Reuters 0.1.1970-05.2008 IFS Guatemala Reserve Bank 0.1.1982-03.2008 Reuters 0.2.197-05.2008 IFS Indonesia IFS 0.1.1982-03.2008 Reuters 0.2.197-05.2008 IFS Indonesia IFS 0.1.1982-03.2008 Reuters 0.1.1970-05.2008 Reuters	Costa Rica	IFS/Reserve Bank	01.1970-03.2008	Reserve Bank	05.2005-04.2008	IFS
Czech Republic IFS 01.1930-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 Statistics Denmark Denmark Eurostat 01.1980-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 Statistics Denmark Eurostat 01.1997-04.2008 Datastream 01.1997-04.2008 IFS El Salvador of Salvador of Salvador IFS Estonia IFS 09.1993-04.2008 Bank of Finland 01.1970-07.2008 IFS France Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Bank of Finland 01.1970-07.2008 Federal Stat Office Gremany Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 Federal Stat Office Grence Eurostat 01.1996-03.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 Federal Stat Office Grence Eurostat 01.1982-03.2008 Reuters 02.1997-06.2008 IFS Hungary Eurostat 01.1983-04.2008 Reuters 02.1997-06.2008 IFS Indonesia IFS 01.1983-04.2008 Reuters 01.1990-03.2008 IFS Indonesia <td></td> <td>of Costa Rica</td> <td></td> <td>of Costa Rica</td> <td></td> <td></td>		of Costa Rica		of Costa Rica		
Denmark Eurostat 01.1980-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 Statistics Denmark Ecuador Datastream 03.1970-04.2008 Datastream 01.1983-04.2008 IFS El Salvador Reserve Bank 01.1997-05.2008 Reserve Bank 01.2005-05.2008 IFS Estonia IFS 09.1993-04.2008 Eurostat 01.1970-07.2008 IFS Finland Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Bank of Finland 01.1970-07.2008 IFS Gramary Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Bank of Finland 01.1970-07.2008 Federal Stat Office Greece Eurostat 05.1980-05.2008 Eurostat 09.1992-06.2008 IFS Guatemala Reserve Bank 01.1982-03.2008 Eurostat 09.1992-06.2008 IFS Honduras Reserve Bank 01.1982-03.2008 Reuters 02.197-06.2008 IFS Indonesia IFS 01.1982-03.2008 Reuters 01.1992-03.2008 IFS Indonesia IFS 01.1970-07.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008	Czech Republic	IFS	01.1993-05.2008	Reuters	03.1998-06.2008	IFS
	Denmark	Eurostat	01.1980-05.2008	Reuters	01.1970-07.2008	Statistics Denmark
El Salvador Reserve Bank of Salvador 01.1997-03.2008 Reserve Bank of Salvador 01.2005-03.2008 IFS Estonia IFS 99.1993-04.2008 Eurostat 01.2001-05.2008 IFS Finland Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Bank of France 01.1970-07.2008 Federal Stat Office Germany Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 Federal Stat Office Greece Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Reuters 09.1992-06.2008 IFS Guatemala Reserve Bank 01.1980-03.2008 Eurostat 09.1992-06.2008 IFS Honduras Reserve Bank 01.1994-03.2008 Reuters 02.1997-06.2008 Statistics Indonesia Indonesia IFS 01.1984-03.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 IFS Indonesia IFS 01.1984-03.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 IFS Ireland IFS 01.1994-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 IFS Ireland IFS 01.1970-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-0	Ecuador	Datastream	03.1970-04.2008	Datastream	01.1983-04.2008	IFS
of Salvadorof SalvadorEstoniaIFS9.1993-04.208Eurostat0.12001-05.208IFSFinlandEurostat0.11970-05.2008Bank of Finland0.11970-07.2008IFSFranceEurostat0.11970-05.2008Bank of France0.11970-07.2008IFSGrenceEurostat0.11970-05.2008Reuters0.11970-07.2008IFSGuatemalaReserve Bank0.11996-03.2008Eurostat0.9199-06.2008IFSGuatemalaReserve Bank0.11982-03.2008Reuters0.9199-06.2008IFSHungaryEurostat0.11982-03.2008Reuters0.21997-06.2008IFSIndonesiaIFS0.11983-04.2008Reuters0.21997-06.2008IFSIndonesiaIFS0.11983-04.2008Reuters0.1199-03.2008IFSIrelandEurostat0.11970-05.2008Reuters0.11970-07.2008IFSIralyEurostat0.11970-05.2008Reuters0.11970-07.2008IFSJapanIFS0.11970-05.2008Reuters0.11970-07.2008IFSJapanIFS0.11970-05.2008Reuters0.11970-07.2008IFSLatviaIFS0.11970-05.2008Reuters0.12001-06.2008IFSLatviaIFS0.11970-05.2008Eurostat0.12001-06.2008IFSLatviaIFS0.11970-05.2008Eurostat0.12001-06.2008IFSMakyaiIFS0.11970-05.2008Eurostat0.12001-06.2008IFSMa	El Salvador	Reserve Bank	01.1997-03.2008	Reserve Bank	01.2005-03.2008	IFS
Estonia IFS 09.1993-04.2008 Eurostat 01.2001-05.2008 IFS Finland Eurostat 01.1980-05.2008 Bank of France 01.1970-06.2008 IFS Germany Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Bank of France 01.1970-06.2008 IFS Gerece Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 Federal Stat Office Grece Eurostat 01.1996-03.2008 Eurostat 09.1992-06.2008 IFS Guatemala Reserve Bank 01.1982-03.2008 Reuters 02.1997-06.2008 IFS Hungary Eurostat 01.1984-03.2008 Reuters 08.2004-06.2008 Statistics Indonesia Iceland IFS 01.1984-03.2008 Reuters 01.1970-06.2008 Central Statistics Iceland IFS 01.1970-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-06.2008 Central Statistics Ireland Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 Korea National Japan IFS 01.1970-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008		of Salvador		of Salvador		
Finland Eurostat 01.1980-05.2008 Bank of Finland 01.1970-07.2008 IFS France Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 Federal Stat Office Germany Eurostat 05.1980-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 Federal Stat Office Greece Eurostat 05.1980-05.2008 Eurostat 09.1992-06.2008 Federal Stat Office Guatemala Reserve Bank 01.1982-03.2008 NA IFS Honduras Reserve Bank 01.1982-03.2008 Reuters 02.1997-06.2008 Statistics Indonesia Iceland IFS 01.1983-04.2008 Reuters 01.1970-06.2008 Statistics Indonesia Iceland IFS 01.1970-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-06.2008 Central Statistics Ireland Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 IFS Japan IFS 01.1970-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 IFS Latvia IFS 01.1970-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 IFS <td>Estonia</td> <td>IFS</td> <td>09.1993-04.2008</td> <td>Eurostat</td> <td>01.2001-05.2008</td> <td>IFS</td>	Estonia	IFS	09.1993-04.2008	Eurostat	01.2001-05.2008	IFS
France Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Bank of France 01.1970-06.2008 INSEE Germany Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 Federal Stat Office Greece Eurostat 05.1980-05.2008 Eurostat 09.1992-06.2008 IFS Guatemala Reserve Bank 01.1990-03.2008 NA IFS Honduras Reserve Bank 01.1980-03.2008 NA IFS Hungary Eurostat 01.1982-03.2008 Reuters 02.1997-06.2008 Statistics Indonesia Iceland IFS 01.1983-04.2008 Reuters 03.2008-02.008 IFS Ireland Eurostat 02.1971-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 IFS Ireland Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 IFS Japan IFS 08.1976-03.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 IFS Lavia IFS 08.1976-03.2008 Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 IFS Lavia IFS 08.1976-03.2008 <td>Finland</td> <td>Eurostat</td> <td>01.1980-05.2008</td> <td>Bank of Finland</td> <td>01.1970-07.2008</td> <td>IFS</td>	Finland	Eurostat	01.1980-05.2008	Bank of Finland	01.1970-07.2008	IFS
Germany Greece Greece GuatemalaEurostat01.1970-05.2008 1980-05.2008Reuters Eurostat01.1992-06.2008Federal Stat Office IFSGuatemala of GuatemalaReserve Bank of Guatemala01.1996-03.2008NAIFSHondurasReserve Bank 	France	Eurostat	01.1970-05.2008	Bank of France	01.1970-06.2008	INSEE
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Germany	Eurostat	01.1970-05.2008	Reuters	01.1970-07.2008	Federal Stat Office
Cutter GuatemalaReserve Bank of Guatemala01.1996-03.2008NAIFSHondurasof Guatemala01.1996-03.2008NAIFSHungaryEurostat01.1992-03.2008Reuters02.1997-06.2008IFSIndonesiaIFS01.1994-05.2008Reuters08.2004-06.2008Statistics IndonesiaIcelandIFS11.1986-03.2008Reuters08.2004-06.2008Statistics IndonesiaIcelandEurostat01.1970-05.2008Reuters01.1970-06.2008Central StatisticsItalyEurostat01.1970-05.2008Reuters01.1970-07.2008IFSJapanIFS01.1970-05.2008Reuters01.1970-07.2008IFSKoreaIFS08.1976-03.2008Bank of Korea + IFS05.1973-07.2008Korea National Statistics OfficeLaosIFS12.1994-03.2008Eurostat01.2001-06.2008IFSLatviaIFS01.1970-05.2008Eurostat01.2001-06.2008IFSLuxembourgEurostat01.2001-06.2008IFSIFSMalaysiaIFS01.1970-05.2008Eurostat01.2001-06.2008IFSMalaysiaIFS01.1970-05.2008FES01.1970-07.2008IFSMexicoIFS01.1970-05.2008FES01.1970-07.2008IFSMexicoIFS01.1970-05.2008IFS01.1970-07.2008IFSNorwayIFS01.1970-05.2008IFS01.1970-07.2008IFSNorwayIFS01.1978-05.2008	Greece	Eurostat	05 1980-05 2008	Eurostat	09 1992-06 2008	IFS
Ochecking of GuatemalaIn 1970 00.2000In 1970 00.2000In 1970 00.2000HondurasReserve Bank of Honduras01.1982-03.2008NAIFSHungaryEurostat01.1994-05.2008Reuters02.1997-06.2008Statistics IndonesiaIrS11.1984-04.2008Reuters08.2004-06.2008Statistics IndonesiaIcelandIFS11.1986-03.2008IFS01.1992-03.2008Central StatisticsIrelandEurostat02.1971-05.2008Reuters01.1970-06.2008Central StatisticsItalyEurostat01.1970-05.2008Reuters01.1970-07.2008IFSJapanIFS01.1970-05.2008Reuters01.1970-07.2008IFSKoreaIFS01.1970-05.2008Reuters01.1970-07.2008IFSLaosIFS12.1994-03.2008IFS01.1970-02.007IFSLatviaIFS08.1993-04.2008Eurostat01.2001-06.2008IFSLihutaniaIFS12.1993-05.2008Eurostat01.2001-06.2008IFSLuxembourgEurostat01.1970-05.2008Central Bank02.1992-05.2008IFSMalaysiaIFS01.1978-05.2008IFS01.1970-07.2008IFSMalaysiaIFS01.1978-05.2008IFS01.1970-07.2008IFSNew ZealandIFS01.1978-03.2008IFS01.1970-07.2008IFSNetherlandsEurostat01.1978-03.2008IFS01.1970-07.2008IFSNew ZealandIFS01.1978-03.2008 </td <td>Guatemala</td> <td>Reserve Bank</td> <td>01 1996-03 2008</td> <td>Lurosur</td> <td>NA</td> <td>IFS</td>	Guatemala	Reserve Bank	01 1996-03 2008	Lurosur	NA	IFS
HondurasReserve Bank of Honduras01.1982-03.2008NAIFSHungaryEurostat01.1994-05.2008Reuters02.1997-06.2008IFSIndonesiaIFS01.1983-04.2008Reuters08.2004-06.2008Statistics IndonesiaIcelandIFS01.1986-03.2008IFS01.1992-03.2008IFSIrelandEurostat02.1971-05.2008Reuters01.1970-07.2008IFSIralyEurostat01.1970-05.2008Reuters01.1970-07.2008IFSJapanIFS01.1970-05.2008Reuters01.1970-07.2008IFSKoreaIFS08.1976-03.2008Bank of Korea + IFS05.1973-07.2008Korea National Statistics OfficeLaviaIFS12.1994-03.2008Eurostat01.2001-06.2008IFSLihutaniaIFS12.1994-03.2008Eurostat01.2001-06.2008IFSLihutaniaIFS10.1970-05.2008Eurostat01.2001-06.2008IFSLuxembourgEurostat01.1970-05.2008Eurostat01.2001-06.2008IFSMalysiaIFS01.1970-05.2008Eurostat01.1970-05.2008IFSMexicoIFS01.1970-05.2008Reuters01.1970-07.2008IFSMexicoIFS01.1978-05.2008IFS1.1998-07.2008IFSMalysiaIFS01.1970-05.2008Reuters01.1970-07.2008StatisticsMexicoIFS01.1970-05.2008Reuters01.1970-07.2008IFSNew ZealandIFS<	Guatemala	of Guatemala	01.1770 05.2000		101	110
Hondmas Reserve Dame Of 192-03.2003 Ret Ref If 3 Hungary Eurostat 01.1994-05.2008 Reuters 02.1997-06.2008 IFS Indonesia IFS 01.1983-04.2008 Reuters 08.2004-06.2008 Statistics Indonesia Iceland IFS 11.1986-03.2008 IFS 01.1970-06.2008 Central Statistics Italy Eurostat 02.1971-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-06.2008 Central Statistics Japan IFS 01.1970-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 IFS Japan IFS 08.1976-03.2008 Bank of Korea + IFS 01.1970-07.2008 IFS Laos IFS 12.1994-03.2008 Eurostat 01.2001-06.2008 IFS Latvia IFS 12.1993-05.2008 Eurostat 01.2001-06.2008 IFS Lihutania IFS 12.1993-05.2008 Eurostat 01.2001-06.2008 IFS Lixembourg Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Eurostat 01.2001-05.2008 IFS Lixembourg </td <td>Honduras</td> <td>Reserve Bank</td> <td>01 1082-03 2008</td> <td></td> <td>NA</td> <td>IFS</td>	Honduras	Reserve Bank	01 1082-03 2008		NA	IFS
Hungary Eurostat 01.1994-05.2008 Reuters 02.1997-06.2008 IFS Indonesia IFS 01.1983-04.2008 Reuters 08.2004-06.2008 Statistics Indonesia Iceland IFS 11.1986-03.2008 IFS 01.1992-03.2008 IFS Ireland Eurostat 02.1971-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-06.2008 Central Statistics Italy Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 IFS Japan IFS 01.1970-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 IFS Korea IFS 08.1976-03.2008 Bank of Korea + IFS 05.1973-07.2008 Korea National Statistics Office Laos IFS 12.1994-03.2008 IFS 01.2001-06.2008 IFS Latvia IFS 11.970-05.2008 Eurostat 01.2001-06.2008 IFS Libutania IFS 11.1970-05.2008 Eurostat 01.2001-06.2008 IFS Malaysia IFS 01.1971-05.2008 Central Bank 02.1992-05.2008 Department of Statistics	Hondulas	of Honduras	01.1982-05.2008		11A	11-5
Iningary Linstat 01.1974-03.2008 Retiters 02.1971-00.2008 Tr3 Indonesia IFS 01.1983-04.2008 Retiters 08.2004-06.2008 Statistics Indonesia Iceland IFS 11.1986-03.2008 Reuters 01.1970-06.2008 Central Statistics Ireland Eurostat 02.1971-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-06.2008 Central Statistics Japan IFS 01.1970-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 IFS Japan IFS 01.1970-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 Korea National Korea IFS 01.1970-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 Korea National Latvia IFS 08.1997-03.2008 Bank of Korea + IFS 01.1970-07.2008 IFS Lihutania IFS 12.1994-03.2008 Eurostat 01.2001-06.2008 IFS Luxembourg Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Eurostat 01.201-06.2008 IFS Malaysia IFS 01.1970-05.2008 Central Bank 02.1992-05.2008 Department	Uungory	Eurostat	01 1004 05 2008	Pautars	02 1007 06 2008	IES
Intonesia IFS 01.1985-04.2006 Reuters 06.2004-00.2006 Statistics induites in	Indonasio	Luiostat	01.1994-05.2008	Reuters	02.1997-00.2008	Etatistica Indonasia
Ireland IrS 11.1930-05.2008 IrS 01.1972-05.2008 IrS Ireland Eurostat 02.1971-05.2008 Reuters, Eurostat + IFS 01.1970-06.2008 Central Statistics Japan IFS 01.1970-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 IFS Japan IFS 01.1970-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 IFS Korea IFS 08.1976-03.2008 Bank of Korea + IFS 05.1973-07.2008 Korea National Statistics Office Laos IFS 12.1994-03.2008 IFS 01.1979-10.2007 IFS Latvia IFS 08.1993-04.2008 Eurostat 01.2001-06.2008 IFS Lihutania IFS 12.1994-05.2008 Eurostat 01.2001-06.2008 IFS Liwembourg Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Eurostat 01.2001-06.2008 IFS Malaysia IFS 01.1971-05.2008 Central Bank 02.1992-05.2008 IFS Netherlands Eurostat 01.1978-05.2008 IFS 12.1998-07.2008 IFS New Zealand IFS 01.1978-05.2008 Resteres 01.1970-07.2008<	Indonesia	IFS	11 1086 02 2008	IES	08.2004-00.2008	
Inertand Eurostat 02.1971-05.2008 Reduets; Eurostat + IFS 01.1970-05.2008 Iter S Italy Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 IFS Japan IFS 01.1970-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 IFS Korea IFS 08.1976-03.2008 Bank of Korea + IFS 05.1973-07.2008 Korea National Statistics Office Laos IFS 12.1994-03.2008 IFS 01.2001-06.2008 IFS Latvia IFS 08.1993-04.2008 Eurostat 01.2001-06.2008 IFS Lihutania IFS 12.1994-05.2008 Eurostat 01.2001-06.2008 IFS Liwambourg Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Eurostat 01.2001-06.2008 IFS Malaysia IFS 01.1971-05.2008 Central Bank 02.1992-05.2008 Department of Statistics Mexico IFS 01.1970-05.2008 IFS 12.1998-07.2008 IFS Netherlands Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 Statistics Netherlands New Zealand IFS 01.1978-03.2008 Res	Iceland	IF3 Evenetet	11.1960-05.2006	IFS Bautan Europatat / IES	01.1992-05.2008	IFS Control Statistics
Italy Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Retters 01.1970-07.2008 IFS Japan IFS 01.1970-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 IFS Korea IFS 08.1976-03.2008 Bank of Korea + IFS 05.1973-07.2008 Korea National Statistics Office Laos IFS 12.1994-03.2008 IFS 01.1970-05.2008 Korea + IFS 01.1970-05.2008 IFS Latvia IFS 08.1993-04.2008 Eurostat 01.2001-06.2008 IFS Lihutania IFS 12.1993-05.2008 Eurostat 01.2001-06.2008 IFS Luxembourg Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Eurostat 01.2001-06.2008 IFS Malaysia IFS 01.1970-05.2008 Central Bank 02.1992-05.2008 Department of Statistics Mexico IFS 01.1970-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 Statistics Netherlands New Zealand IFS 01.1970-05.2008 Resterve Bank 01.1970-07.2008 Statistics Nicaragua Reserve Bank 01.1970-05.2008 Reserve Bank 01.1970-07.2008 IFS Nicaragua	Ireland	Eurostat	02.1971-05.2008	Reuters, Eurostat + IFS	01.1970-00.2008	
Japan IFS 01.1970-05.2008 Retters 01.1970-07.2008 IFS Korea IFS 08.1976-03.2008 Bank of Korea + IFS 05.1973-07.2008 Korea National Statistics Office Laos IFS 12.1994-03.2008 IFS 01.1979-10.2007 IFS Latvia IFS 08.1993-04.2008 Eurostat 01.2001-06.2008 IFS Lihutania IFS 12.1993-05.2008 Eurostat 01.2001-06.2008 IFS Luxembourg Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Eurostat 01.2001-06.2008 IFS Malaysia IFS 01.1970-05.2008 Eurostat + IFS 01.1970-05.2008 IFS Mexico IFS 01.1970-05.2008 Central Bank 02.1992-05.2008 IFS Netherlands Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 Statistics New Zealand IFS 01.1978-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 Statistics Nicaragua Reserve Bank 01.1970-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 Statistics Nicaragua IFS 01.1978-03.2008 IFS 01.1970	Italy	Eurostat	01.1970-05.2008	Reuters	01.1970-07.2008	IFS
KoreaIFS08.1976-03.2008Bank of Korea + IFS05.1973-07.2008Korea National Statistics OfficeLaosIFS12.1994-03.2008IFS01.1979-10.2007IFSLatviaIFS08.1993-04.2008Eurostat01.2001-06.2008IFSLihutaniaIFS12.1993-05.2008Eurostat01.2001-06.2008IFSLuxembourgEurostat01.1970-05.2008Eurostat01.2001-06.2008IFSMalaysiaIFS01.1971-05.2008Central Bank02.1992-05.2008Department of StatisticsMexicoIFS01.1978-05.2008IFS12.1998-07.2008IFSNetherlandsEurostat01.1970-05.2008Reuters01.1970-07.2008Statistics NetherlandsNew ZealandIFS01.1978-03.2008IFS01.1970-07.2008Statistics NetherlandsNicaraguaReserve Bank01.1982-03.2008IFS01.1970-01.2007IFSNorwayIFS01.1982-03.2008Datastream01.1972-03.2008IFSParaguayIFS12.1994-05.2008Datastream12.194-05.2008IFSPeruDatastream02.1992-05.2008Datastream12.1984-05.2008IFSPolandIFS01.1977-05.2008Reuters01.2001-06.2008IFSPolandIFS11.970-05.2008Reuters11.1999-06.2008IFSPolandIFS11.970-05.2008Reuters11.1999-06.2008IFS	Japan	IFS	01.1970-05.2008	Reuters	01.1970-07.2008	IFS
Laos IFS 12.1994-03.2008 IFS 01.1979-10.2007 IFS Latvia IFS 08.1993-04.2008 Eurostat 01.2001-06.2008 IFS Lihutania IFS 12.1993-05.2008 Eurostat 01.2001-06.2008 IFS Luxembourg Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Eurostat + IFS 01.1970-05.2008 IFS Malaysia IFS 01.1971-05.2008 Central Bank 02.1992-05.2008 Department of Statistics of Malaysia IFS 01.1978-05.2008 IFS 12.1998-07.2008 IFS Netherlands Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 Statistics Netherlands New Zealand IFS 01.1978-03.2008 IFS 01.1970-07.2008 Statistics Netherlands Nicaragua Reserve Bank 01.1998-02.2008 Reserve Bank 01.1996-02.2008 IFS Nicaragua IFS 01.1982-03.2008 Datastream 01.1972-03.2008 IFS Paraguay IFS 01.1982-03.2008 Datastream 01.1972-03.2008 IFS Paraguay IFS 01.1982-03.2008 Datastream 12.1984-05.2008 IFS Paraguay IFS 01.1977-05.2008 Reuters 01.2019-05.2008 IFS Paraguay IFS 01.1977-05.2008 Reuters 01.2019-05.2008 IFS Paraguay IFS 01.1982-03.2008 Datastream 12.1984-05.2008 IFS Paraguay IFS 01.1997-05.2008 Reuters 01.2019-06.2008 IFS Paraguay IFS 01.1992-05.2008 Reuters 01.2019-06.2008 IFS Paraguay IFS 01.1977-05.2008 Reuters 01.2001-06.2008 IFS	Korea	1FS	08.1976-03.2008	Bank of Korea + IFS	05.1973-07.2008	Korea National
Laos IFS 12.1994-03.2008 IFS 01.1979-10.2007 IFS Latvia IFS 08.1993-04.2008 Eurostat 01.2001-06.2008 IFS Lihutania IFS 12.1993-05.2008 Eurostat 01.2001-06.2008 IFS Luxembourg Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Eurostat 01.2001-06.2008 IFS Malaysia IFS 01.1970-05.2008 Eurostat + IFS 01.1970-05.2008 Department of Statistics Mexico IFS 01.1978-05.2008 Central Bank 02.1992-05.2008 Department of Statistics Mexico IFS 01.1978-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 Statistics Netherlands New Zealand IFS 01.1978-03.2008 IFS 01.1970-07.2008 Statistics Netherlands Nicaragua Reserve Bank 01.1978-03.2008 IFS 01.1970-07.2008 IFS Nicaragua IFS 01.1978-03.2008 Reserve Bank 01.1996-02.2008 IFS Norway IFS 01.1978-03.2008 Datastream 01.1972-03.2008 IFS<		100	12 100 1 02 2000	172		Statistics Office
Latvia IFS 08.1993-04.2008 Eurostat 01.2001-06.2008 IFS Lihutania IFS 12.1993-05.2008 Eurostat 01.2001-06.2008 IFS Luxembourg Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 IFS Malaysia IFS 01.1971-05.2008 Eurostat 11.970-05.2008 Department of Statistics Mexico IFS 01.1978-05.2008 IFS 12.1998-07.2008 Department of Statistics Mexico IFS 01.1970-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 Statistics Netherlands New Zealand IFS 01.1978-03.2008 IFS 01.1970-07.2008 Statistics Netherlands New Zealand IFS 01.1978-03.2008 Reserve Bank 01.1970-01.2007 IFS Nicaragua Reserve Bank 01.1982-03.2008 Reserve Bank 01.1972-03.2008 IFS Norway IFS 01.1982-03.2008 Datastream 01.1972-03.2008 IFS Paraguay IFS 12.1994-05.2008 Datastream 12.1984-05.2008 <t< td=""><td>Laos</td><td>IFS</td><td>12.1994-03.2008</td><td>IFS</td><td>01.19/9-10.2007</td><td>IFS</td></t<>	Laos	IFS	12.1994-03.2008	IFS	01.19/9-10.2007	IFS
Lihutania IFS 12.1993-05.2008 Eurostat 01.2001-06.2008 IFS Luxembourg Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Eurostat + IFS 01.1970-05.2008 IFS Malaysia IFS 01.1971-05.2008 Central Bank 02.1992-05.2008 Department of Statistics Mexico IFS 01.1978-05.2008 IFS 12.1998-07.2008 IFS Netherlands Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 Statistics Netherlands New Zealand IFS 01.1978-03.2008 IFS 01.1970-01.2007 IFS Nicaragua Reserve Bank 01.1982-03.2008 Reserve Bank 01.1972-03.2008 IFS Norway IFS 01.1982-03.2008 Datastream 01.1972-03.2008 IFS Paraguay IFS 12.1994-05.2008 Datastream 12.1994-05.2008 IFS Peru Datastream 02.1992-05.2008 Datastream 12.194-05.2008 IFS Philippines IFS 01.1977-05.2008 Reuters 01.2001-06.2008 IFS <td>Latvia</td> <td>IFS</td> <td>08.1993-04.2008</td> <td>Eurostat</td> <td>01.2001-06.2008</td> <td>IFS</td>	Latvia	IFS	08.1993-04.2008	Eurostat	01.2001-06.2008	IFS
Luxembourg Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Eurostat + IFS 01.1970-05.2008 IFS Malaysia IFS 01.1971-05.2008 Central Bank 02.1992-05.2008 Department of Statistics Mexico IFS 01.1978-05.2008 IFS 12.1998-07.2008 Department of Statistics Mexico IFS 01.1978-05.2008 IFS 12.1998-07.2008 IFS Netherlands Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 Statistics Netherlands New Zealand IFS 01.1978-03.2008 IFS 01.1970-01.2007 IFS Nicaragua Reserve Bank 01.1982-03.2008 Reserve Bank 01.1972-03.2008 IFS Paraguay IFS 01.1982-03.2008 Datastream 01.1972-03.2008 IFS Peru Datastream 02.1994-05.2008 Datastream 12.1984-05.2008 IFS Peru Datastream 02.1992-05.2008 Datastream 12.1984-05.2008 IFS Philippines IFS 01.1977-05.2008 Reuters 01.2001-06.2008 <	Lihutania	IFS	12.1993-05.2008	Eurostat	01.2001-06.2008	IFS
MalaysiaIFS01.1971-05.2008Central Bank of Malaysia02.1992-05.2008Department of Statistics Department of StatisticsMexicoIFS01.1978-05.2008IFS12.1998-07.2008IFSNetherlandsEurostat01.1970-05.2008Reuters01.1970-07.2008Statistics NetherlandsNew ZealandIFS01.1978-03.2008IFS01.1970-01.2007IFSNicaraguaReserve Bank01.1998-02.2008Reserve Bank01.1996-02.2008IFSNorwayIFS01.1982-03.2008Datastream01.1972-03.2008IFSParaguayIFS12.1994-05.2008Datastream12.1994-05-2008IFSPeruDatastream02.1992-05.2008Datastream12.1984-05.2008IFSPhilippinesIFS01.1977-05.2008Reuters01.2001-06.2008IFSPolandIFS12.1990-04.2008Reuters11.1999-06.2008IFSPortucalEurostat01.1972-03.2008IFS11.1999-06.2008IFS	Luxembourg	Eurostat	01.1970-05.2008	Eurostat + IFS	01.1970-05.2008	IFS
Mexico IFS 01.1978-05.2008 IFS 12.1998-07.2008 IFS Netherlands Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 Statistics Netherlands New Zealand IFS 01.1978-03.2008 IFS 01.1970-07.2008 Statistics Netherlands New Zealand IFS 01.1978-03.2008 IFS 01.1970-07.2008 Statistics Netherlands Nicaragua Reserve Bank 01.1978-03.2008 IFS 01.1970-01.12007 IFS Nicaragua Reserve Bank 01.1982-03.2008 Reserve Bank 01.1996-02.2008 IFS of Nicaragua of Nicaragua of Nicaragua of Nicaragua IFS 12.1994-05.2008 IFS Paraguay IFS 12.1994-05.2008 Datastream 12.1994-05.2008 IFS Peru Datastream 02.1992-05.2008 Datastream 12.1984-05.2008 IFS Philippines IFS 01.1977-05.2008 Reuters 01.2001-06.2008 IFS Poland IFS 12.1990-04.2008 Reuters 11.1999-06.20	Malaysia	IFS	01.1971-05.2008	Central Bank	02.1992-05.2008	Department of Statistics
Mexico IFS 01.1978-05.2008 IFS 12.1998-07.2008 IFS Netherlands Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 Statistics Netherlands New Zealand IFS 01.1978-03.2008 IFS 01.1970-07.2008 Statistics Netherlands New Zealand IFS 01.1978-03.2008 IFS 01.1970-07.2008 Statistics Netherlands Nicaragua Reserve Bank 01.1978-03.2008 IFS 01.1970-07.2008 IFS Nicaragua Reserve Bank 01.1978-03.2008 Reserve Bank 01.1970-07.2008 IFS of Nicaragua of Nicaragua of Nicaragua of Nicaragua IFS 12.1994-05.2008 IFS Paraguay IFS 12.1994-05.2008 Datastream 12.1994-05.2008 IFS Peru Datastream 02.1992-05.2008 Datastream 12.1984-05.2008 IFS Philippines IFS 01.1977-05.2008 Reuters 01.2001-06.2008 IFS Poland IFS 12.1990-04.2008 Reuters 11.1999-06.200				of Malaysia		Department of Statistics
Netherlands Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Reuters 01.1970-07.2008 Statistics Netherlands New Zealand IFS 01.1978-03.2008 IFS 01.1970-07.2008 Statistics Netherlands Nicaragua Reserve Bank 01.1978-03.2008 IFS 01.1970-01.2007 IFS Nicaragua Reserve Bank 01.1998-02.2008 Reserve Bank 01.1996-02.2008 IFS Norway IFS 01.1982-03.2008 Datastream 01.1972-03.2008 IFS Paraguay IFS 12.1994-05.2008 Datastream 12.1994-05-2008 IFS Peru Datastream 02.1992-05.2008 Datastream 12.1984-05.2008 IFS Philippines IFS 01.1977-05.2008 Reuters 01.2001-06.2008 IFS Poland IFS 12.1990-04.2008 Reuters 11.2091-06.2008 IFS Portugal Eurostat 01.1976-05.2008 Reuters 11.1999-06.2008 IFS	Mexico	IFS	01.1978-05.2008	IFS	12.1998-07.2008	IFS
New Zealand IFS 01.1978-03.2008 IFS 01.1970-11.2007 IFS Nicaragua Reserve Bank of Nicaragua 01.1998-02.2008 Reserve Bank of Nicaragua 01.1996-02.2008 IFS Norway IFS 01.1982-03.2008 Datastream 01.1972-03.2008 IFS Paraguay IFS 12.1994-05.2008 Datastream 12.1994-05-2008 IFS Peru Datastream 02.1992-05.2008 Datastream 12.1984-05.2008 IFS Philippines IFS 01.1977-05.2008 Reuters 01.2001-06.2008 IFS Poland IFS 12.1990-04.2008 Reuters 11.1999-06.2008 IFS Portucal Eurostat 01.1972-05.2008 Reuters 01.1986-06.2008 IFS	Netherlands	Eurostat	01.1970-05.2008	Reuters	01.1970-07.2008	Statistics Netherlands
Nicaragua Reserve Bank of Nicaragua 01.1998-02.2008 Reserve Bank of Nicaragua 01.1996-02.2008 IFS Norway IFS 01.1982-03.2008 Datastream 01.1972-03.2008 IFS Paraguay IFS 12.1994-05.2008 Datastream 12.1994-05-2008 IFS Peru Datastream 02.1992-05.2008 Datastream 12.1984-05.2008 IFS Philippines IFS 01.1977-05.2008 Reuters 01.2001-06.2008 IFS Poland IFS 12.1990-04.2008 Reuters 11.1999-06.2008 IFS Portugal Eurostat 01.1972-05.2008 Eurostat 01.1986-06.2008 IFS	New Zealand	IFS	01.1978-03.2008	IFS	01.1970-11.2007	IFS
of Nicaragua of Nicaragua Norway IFS 01.1982-03.2008 Datastream 01.1972-03.2008 IFS Paraguay IFS 12.1994-05.2008 Datastream 12.1994-05-2008 IFS Peru Datastream 02.1992-05.2008 Datastream 12.1984-05.2008 IFS Philippines IFS 01.1977-05.2008 Reuters 01.2001-06.2008 IFS Poland IFS 12.1990-04.2008 Reuters 11.1999-06.2008 IFS Portugal Eurostat 01.1972-05.2008 Eurostat 01.1986.06.2008 IFS	Nicaragua	Reserve Bank	01.1998-02.2008	Reserve Bank	01.1996-02.2008	IFS
Norway IFS 01.1982-03.2008 Datastream 01.1972-03.2008 IFS Paraguay IFS 12.1994-05.2008 Datastream 12.1994-05-2008 IFS Peru Datastream 02.1992-05.2008 Datastream 12.1984-05.2008 IFS Philippines IFS 01.1977-05.2008 Reuters 01.2001-06.2008 IFS Poland IFS 12.1990-04.2008 Reuters 11.1999-06.2008 IFS Portugal Eurostat 01.1972-05.2008 Eurostat 01.1986-06.2008 IFS		of Nicaragua		of Nicaragua		
Paraguay IFS 12.1994-05.2008 Datastream 12.1994-05-2008 IFS Peru Datastream 02.1992-05.2008 Datastream 12.1984-05.2008 IFS Philippines IFS 01.1977-05.2008 Reuters 01.2001-06.2008 IFS Poland IFS 12.1990-04.2008 Reuters 11.1999-06.2008 IFS Portugal Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Eurostat 01.1986-06.2008 IFS	Norway	IFS	01.1982-03.2008	Datastream	01.1972-03.2008	IFS
Peru Datastream 02.1992-05.2008 Datastream 12.1984-05.2008 IFS Philippines IFS 01.1977-05.2008 Reuters 01.2001-06.2008 IFS Poland IFS 12.1990-04.2008 Reuters 11.1999-06.2008 IFS Portugal Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Eurostat 01.1986.06.2008 IFS	Paraguay	IFS	12.1994-05.2008	Datastream	12.1994-05-2008	IFS
Philippines IFS 01.1977-05.2008 Reuters 01.2001-06.2008 IFS Poland IFS 12.1990-04.2008 Reuters 11.1999-06.2008 IFS Portugal Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Eurostat 01.1986.06.2008 IFS	Peru	Datastream	02.1992-05.2008	Datastream	12.1984-05.2008	IFS
Poland IFS 12.1990-04.2008 Reuters 11.1999-06.2008 IFS Portugal Eurostat 01.1970-05.2008 Eurostat 01.1986.06.2008 IFS	Philippines	IFS	01.1977-05.2008	Reuters	01.2001-06.2008	IFS
Portugal Eurostat 01 1970-05 2008 Eurostat 01 1986 06 2008 IES	Poland	IFS	12.1990-04.2008	Reuters	11.1999-06.2008	IFS
Fortugar Eurostat 01.1770-03.2000 Eurostat 01.1700-00.2000 IFS	Portugal	Eurostat	01.1970-05.2008	Eurostat	01.1986-06.2008	IFS

Table A.2 – Sources and definition of data

Table A.2 – Sources and definition of data (Ctd.)

	Short-tern	interest rates	Long-term i	nterest rates	CPI
Country	Source	Period	Source	Period	Source
Romania	IFS	01.1995-04.2008	IFS	02.2002-07.2008	IFS
Singapore	IFS	04.1972-05-2008	Reuters	01.1988-07.2008	IFS
Slovakia	Eurostat	07.1995-05.2008	Eurostat	01.2001-06.2008	IFS
Slovenia	IFS	01.1993-03.2008	IFS	05.1998-03.2008	IFS
Spain	Eurostat	01.1977-05.2008	Reuters	03.1978-07.2008	National Institute
					of Statistics
Sweden	Eurostat	01.1987-05.2008	Reuters	01.1970-07.2008	Statistics Sweden
Switzerland	IFS	09.1975-03.2008	IFS	01.1972-03.2008	
Thailand	IFS	01.1977-05.2008	Bank of Thailand	09.1999-06.2008	IFS
United kingdom	IFS + Reuters	01.1978-07.2008	Reuters	01.1970-07.2008	IFS
Unites States	IFS	01.1970-07.2008	Reuters	01.1970-07.2008	IFS
Uruguay	Datastream	12.1992-05.2008	Datastream	07.1976-05.2008	IFS
Vietnam	IFS	02.1997-12.2006	IFS	01.1996-12.2006	IFS
Venezuela	IFS	01.1996-12.2007	IFS	01.1984-12.2007	IFS



Figure A.1 – Trace test. APT (ASEAN+3)

Note: Horizontal lines correspond to the critical values of the Johansen trace tests. In the upper part of the graph, these are for the null of no cointegration, respectively at 5 (15.41) and 1% (20.04) significance levels. In the lower part of the graph can be found the critical values corresponding to the null of at most one cointegrating relationship, respectively at 5 (3.76) and 1% (6.65) levels. When the plot of the trace(s) stands above the horizontal line(s), the null hypothesis is rejected at the corresponding significance level. It is also worth noting that an upward trend for the trace means that the robustness of the cointegrating relationship grows with time.





Figure A.3 – Trace test. CER



Note: See Figure A.1.





Note: See Figure A.1.



Figure A.5 – Trace test. EFTA

Note: See Figure A.1.



Figure A.6 – Trace test. ANDEAN

Note: See Figure A.1.

Figure A.7 – Trace test. CACM



Note: See Figure A.1.



Figure A.8 – Trace test. MERCOSUR

Note: See Figure A.1.



Note: See Figure A.1.



Figure A.10 - Trace test. Euro-12

1

List of working papers released by CEPII¹

No	Title	Authors
2008-32	Do Terms of trade Drive Real Exchange Rates? Comparing Oil and Commodity Currencies	V. Coudert, C. Couharde & V. Mignon
2008-31	Vietnam's Accession to the WTO: Ex-Post Evaluation in a Dynamic Perspective	H. Boumellassa & H. Valin
2008-30	Structural Gravity Equations with Intensive and Extensive Margins	M. Crozet & P. Koenig
2008-29	Trade Prices and the Euro	J. Martin & I. Méjean
2008-28	Commerce international et transports : tendances du passé et prospective 2020	C. Gouel, N. Kousnetzoff & Hassan Salman
2008-27	The Erosion of Colonial Trade Linkages after Independence	T. Mayer, K. Head & J. Ries
2008-26	Plus grandes, plus fortes, plus loin Performances relatives des firmes exportatrices françaises	M. Crozet, I. Méjean & S. Zignago
2008-25	A General Equilibrium Evaluation of the Sustainability of the New Pension Reforms in Italy	R. Magnani
2008-24	The Location of Japanese MNC Affiliates: Agglomeration, Spillovers and Firm Heterogeneity	T. Inui, T. Matsuura & S. Poncet
2008-23	Non Linear Adjustment of the Real Exchange Rate Towards its Equilibrium Values	S. Béreau, A. Lopez Villavicencio & V. Mignon
2008-22	Demographic Uncertainty in Europe – Implications on Macro Economic Trends and Pension Reforms – An Investigation with the INGENUE2 Model	M. Aglietta & V. Borgy
2008-21	The Euro Effects on the Firm and Product-Level Trade Margins: Evidence from France	A. Berthou & L. Fontagné
2008-20	The Impact of Economic Geography on Wages: Disentangling the Channels of Influence	L. Hering & S. Poncet
2008-19	Do Corporate Taxes Reduce Productivity and	J. Arnold & C. Schwellnus

Working papers are circulated free of charge as far as stocks are available; thank you to send your request to CEPII, Sylvie Hurion, 9, rue Georges-Pitard, 75015 Paris, or by fax : (33) 01 53 68 55 04 or by e-mail <u>Hurion@cepii.fr</u>. Also available on: \\www.cepii.fr. Working papers with * are out of print. They can nevertheless be consulted and downloaded from this website.

¹ Les documents de travail sont diffusés gratuitement sur demande dans la mesure des stocks disponibles. Merci d'adresser votre demande au CEPII, Sylvie Hurion, 9, rue Georges-Pitard, 75015 Paris, ou par fax : (33) 01 53 68 55 04 ou par e-mail <u>Hurion@cepii.fr</u>. Egalement disponibles sur : \\www.cepii.fr. Les documents de travail comportant * sont épuisés. Ils sont toutefois consultable sur le web CEPII.

	Investment at the Firm Level? Cross-Country Evidence from the Amadeus Dataset	
2008-18	Choosing Sensitive Agricultural Products in Trade Negotiations	S. Jean, D. Laborde & W. Martin
2008-17	Government Consumption Volatility and Country Size	D. Furceri & M. Poplawski Ribeiro
2008-16	Inherited or Earned? Performance of Foreign Banks in Central and Eastern Europe	O. H avrylchyk & E. Jurzyk
2008-15	The Effect of Foreign Bank Entry on the Cost of Credit in Transition Economies. Which Borrowers Benefit most?	H. Degryse, O. Havrylchyk, E. Jurzyk & S. Kozak
2008-14	Contagion in the Credit Default Swap Market: The Case of the GM and Ford Crisis in 2005	V. Coudert & M. Gex
2008-13	Exporting to Insecure Markets: A Firm-Level Analysis	M. Crozet, P. Koenig & V. Rebeyrol
2008-12	Social Competition and Firms' Location Choices	V. Delbecque,
2008-11	Border Effects of Brazilian States	M. Daumal & S. Zignago
2008-10	International Trade Price Indices	G. Gaulier, J. Martin, I. Méjean & S. Zignago
2008-09	Base de données CHELEM – Commerce international du CEPII	A. de Saint Vaulry,
2008-08	The Brain Drain between Knowledge-Based Economies: the European Human Capital Outflow to the US	A. Tritah
2008-07	Currency Misalignments and Exchange Rate Regimes in Emerging and Developing Countries	V. Coudert & C. Couharde
2008-06	The Euro and the Intensive and Extensive Margins of Trade : Evidence from French Firm Level Data	A. Berthou & L. Fontagné
2008-05	On the Influence of Oil Prices on Economic Activity and other Macroeconomic and Financial Variables	V. Mignon & F. Lescaroux
2008-04	An Impact Study of the EU-ACP Economic Partnership Agreements (EPAs) in the Six ACP Regions	L. Fontagné, D. Laborde & C. Mitaritonna
2008-03	The Brave New World of Cross-Regionalism	A. Tovias
2008-02	Equilibrium Exchange Rates: a Guidebook for the Euro-Dollar Rate	A. Bénassy-Quéré, S. Béreau & V. Mignon
2008-01	How Robust are Estimated Equilibrium Exchange Rates? A Panel BEER Approach	A. Bénassy-Quéré, S. Béreau & V. Mignon

2007-24	Testing the Finance-Growth Link: Is there a Difference between Developed and Developing Countries?	G. Dufrénot, V. Mignon & A. Péguin-Feissolle
2007-23	Nonlinear Adjustment of the Real Exchange Rate Towards its Equilibrium Value : a Panel Smooth Transition Error Correction Modelling	S Béreau, A. Lopez Villavicencio, V. Mignon
2007-22	Economic Geography, Spatial Dependence and Income Inequality in China	L. Hering & S. Poncet
2007-21	Does FDI in Manufacturing Cause FDI in Business Services ? Evidence from French Firm-Level Data	B. Nefussi & C. Schwellnus
2007-20	Bilateral Trade of Cultural Goods A.C. Disdier, S.H.T. Tai	, L. Fontagné & T. Mayer
2007-19	China and India in International Trade: from Laggards to Leaders?	F. Lemoine & D. Ünal-Kesenci,
2007-18	How Remote is the Offshoring Threat?	K. Head, T. Mayer &
2007-17	Costs and Benefits of Euro Membership: a Counterfactual Analysis	J. Ries, E. Dubois, J. Héricourt &. V. Mignon
2007-16	Location Decisions and Minimum Wages	I. Méjean, L Patureau
2007-15	MIRAGE, Updated Versio of the Model for Trade Policy Analysis Focus on Agriculture and Dynamics	Y. Decreux & H. Valin
2007-14	Mondialisation des services de la mesure à l'analyse	I. Bensidoun & D. Ünal- Kesenci
2007-13	How are wages set in Beijing	J. De Sousa & S. Poncet
2007-12	IMF Quotas at Year 2030	A. Bénassy-Quéré, S. Béreau, Y. Decreux, C. Gouel & S. Poncet
2007-11	FDI and Credit Constraints: Firm Level Evidence in China	J. Héricourt & S. Poncet
2007-10	Fiscal Policy in Real Time	J. Cimadomo
2007-09	Global Ageing and Macroeconomic Consequences of Demographic Uncertainty in a Multi-regional Model	J. Alho & V. Borgy
2007-08	The Effect of Domestic Regulation on Services Trade Revisited	C. Schwellnus
2007-07	The location of domestic and foreign production affiliates by French multinational firms	T.Mayer I. Méjean B. Néfussi
2007-06	Specialisation across Varieties within Products and North-South Competition	L. Fontagné, G. Gaulier & S. Zignago
2007-05	Trade Costs and the Home Market Effect	M. Crozet & F. Trionfetti

CEPII, WP *n*° 2009 – 01

2007-04	The Impact of Regulations on Agricultural Trade: Evidence from SPS and TBT Agreements	AC. Disdier, L. Fontagné & M. Mimouni
2007-03	International Comparisons of Living Standards by Equivalent Incomes	M. Fleurbaey & G. Gaulier
2007-02	Does Risk Aversion Drive Financial Crises? Testing the Predictive Power of Empirical Indicators	V. Coudert & M. Gex
2007-01	Asian Catch Up, World Growth and International Capital Flows in the XXIst Century : A Prospective Analysis with the INGENUE 2 Model	M. Aglietta, V. Borgy, J. Château, M. Juillard, J. Le Cacheux, G. Le Garrec & V. Touzé
2006-27	Current Account Reversals and Long Term Imbalances: Application to the Central and Eastern European Countries	K. Benhima & O. Havrylchyk
2006-26	On Legal Origins and Brankruptcy Laws: the European Experience (1808-1914)	J. Sgard
2006-25	Taux d'intérêt et marchés boursiers : une analyse empirique de l'intégration financière internationale	V. Borgy & V. Mignon
2006-24	Changing Patterns of Domestic and Cross-Border Fiscal Policy Multipliers in Europe and the US	A. Bénassy-Quéré & J. Cimadomo
2006-23	Market Access Impact on Individual Wage: Evidence from China	L. Hering & S. Poncet
2006-22	FDI in Chinese Cities: Spillovers and Impact on Growth	N. Madariaga & S. Poncet
2006-21	Taux d'intérêt et marchés boursiers : une analyse empirique de l'intégration financière internationale	V. Borgy & V. Mignon
2006-20	World Consistent Equilibrium Exchange Rates	A. Bénassy-Quéré, A. Lahrèche- Révil & V. Mignon
2006-19	Institutions and Bilateral Asset Holdings	V. Salins & A. Bénassy-Quéré
2006-18	Vertical Production Networks: Evidence from France	M. Fouquin, L. Nayman & L. Wagner
2006-17	Import Prices, Variety and the Extensive Margin of Trade	G. Gaulier & I. Méjean
2006-16	The Long Term Growth Prospects of the World Economy: Horizon 2050	S. Poncet
2006-15	Economic Integration in Asia: Bilateral Free Trade Agreements Versus Asian Single Market	M. H. Bchir & M. Fouquin
2006-14	Foreign Direct Investment in China: Reward or Remedy?	O. Havrylchyk & S. Poncet

CEPII, WP *n*° 2009 – 01

From various degrees of trade to various degrees of financial integration

2006-13	Short-Term Fiscal Spillovers in a Monetary Union	A. Bénassy-Quéré
2006-12	Can Firms' Location Decisions Counteract the Balassa-Samuelson Effect?	I. Méjean
2006-11	Who's Afraid of Tax Competition? Harmless Tax Competition from the New European Member States	A. Lahrèche-Révil
2006-10	A Quantitative Assessment of the Outcome of the Doha Development Agenda	Y. Decreux & L. Fontagné
2006-09	Disparities in Pension Financing in Europe: Economic and Financial Consequences	J. Château & X. Chojnicki
2006-08	Base de données CHELEM-BAL du CEPII	H. Boumellassa & D. Ünal-Kesenci
2006-07	Deindustrialisation and the Fear of Relocations in the Industry	H. Boulhol & L. Fontagné
2006-06	A Dynamic Perspective for the Reform of the Stability and Gowth Pact	C. Deubner
2006-05	China's Emergence and the Reorganisation of Trade Flows in Asia	G. Gaulier, F. Lemoine & D. Ünal- Kesenci
2006-04	Who Pays China's Bank Restructuring Bill?	G. Ma

CEPII DOCUMENTS DE TRAVAIL / WORKING PAPERS

Si vous souhaitez recevoir des Documents de travail, merci de remplir le coupon-réponse ci-joint et de le retourner à :

Should you wish to receive copies of the CEPII's Working papers, just fill the reply card and return it to:

Sylvie HURION – Publications CEPII – 9, rue Georges-Pitard – 75740 Paris – Fax : (33) 1.53.68.55.04 sylvie.hurion@cepii.fr

M./Mme / Mr./Mrs
Nom-Prénom / Name-First name
Titre / Title
Service / Department
Organisme / Organisation
Adresse / Address
Ville & CP / City & post code Pays / Country
Désire recevoir les Document de travail du CEPII n° :
Désire recevoir les Document de travail du CEPII n° : Wish to receive the CEPII's Working Papers No :
Désire recevoir les Document de travail du CEPII n° : Wish to receive the CEPII's Working Papers No :
Désire recevoir les Document de travail du CEPII n° : Wish to receive the CEPII's Working Papers No :
Désire recevoir les Document de travail du CEPII n° : <i>Wish to receive the CEPII's Working Papers No</i> :
Désire recevoir les Document de travail du CEPII n° : <i>Wish to receive the CEPII's Working Papers No</i> :
Désire recevoir les Document de travail du CEPII n° : <i>Wish to receive the CEPII's Working Papers No</i> :
Désire recevoir les Document de travail du CEPII n° : <i>Wish to receive the CEPII's Working Papers No</i> :

Souhaite être placé sur la liste de diffusion permanente (**pour les bibliothèques**) *Wish to be placed on the standing mailing list (for Libraries*).